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Mailing Address:  
P. O. Box 2474 
West Monroe, LA 71294-2474 

CAMERON, HINES & COMPANY 
(A Professional Accounting Corporation) 

Certified Public Accountants 
104 Regency Place 

West Monroe, Louisiana 71291 Phone ( 3181 323-1717 
Fax (318; 322-5121 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the 
City of West Monroe, Louisiana 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and 
the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of West Monroe, Louisiana (which is "the 
City"), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table 
of contents. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the 
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and aggregate remaining fund 
information of the City as of June 30, 2023, and the respective changes in financial position, and, 
where applicable, cash flows, thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the City and to 
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements 
relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and 
for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 
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In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events. considered in the aggregate. that raise substantial doubt about the City's 
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, 
including any currently known information that may raise substantial douht shortly thereafter. 

.4uditors' Respon.sibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue and 
auditors' report that includes our opinions. Reasonahle assurance is a high level of assurance but 
is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standaids will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Misstatements are considered matenal if there is suhstantial likelihood that, indnidually or in the 
aggregate, they would intluence the judgement made by a reasonable user based on the financial 
statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. 
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, no 
such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management. as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are conditions or events. considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City's ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, signiticant audit tindings, and certain internal 
control-related matters that we identified during the audit. 
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Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management', discussion and analysis., budgetary comparison information, schedule of changes 
in net OPEB hability and related ratios, schedule of proportionate share of net pension liability, 
and the schedule of employer's pension contribution on pages 5 through 13 and (i4 through 73, be 
presented to supplement the basic tinancial statements Such information, although not a part of 
the basic tinancial statements, is required hy the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who 
considers it to be an essential part of tinancial reporting for placing the basic financial statements 
in an appropriate operational, economical, or historical context. We have applied cermin limitea 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management 
about the methods of preparing the mfoimation and comparing the information for consistency 
with management's responses to our inquiries., the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained dunng our audit of the basic fmancial statements. We do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not 
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or pro‘ide any assurance. 

Supplementary Information 

()ur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. Thr accompanying combining and 
individual nomnajor fund tinancial statements, the Schedule of Compensation. Benefits and Other 
Payments to Agency Head, and the Act 87 Collecting and Disbursing Entity and Receiving Entity 
Schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic 
financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U S. Code qf Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles. und Audit 
Requirements Pr Federal Awards, and is also not a required part of the basic tinancial 
statements 

The combining and individual nonmajor fund tinancial statements, Schedule of Compensation, 
Benefits and Other Payments to Agency Head, Act 87 Collecting and Disbursing Entity and 
Receiving Entity Schedules, and Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are the 
responsibility of rnanagement and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statetnents. Such information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedure, applied in the audit of the tinancial slatements and certain 
additional procedures, including companng and reconciling such infoimation directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the 
financial statements themseh es, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and 
individual nonrnajor fund financial statements, Schedule of Compensation, Benefits and Other 
Payments to Agency Head, Act 87 Collecting and Disbursing Entity and Receiving Entity 
Schedules, and Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are fairly stated in all material 
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
December 8, 2023, on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City's internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

/a-v..4443m  4-444-ef, Cii-P4C) 
West Monroe, Louisiana 
December 8, 2023 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (PART A) 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  



CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2023 

As management of the City of West Monroe, we offer readers of the financial statements this 
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2023. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction 
with the accompanying transmittal letter and the accompanying basic financial statements. The 
intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the City's financial performance as a whole. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• The assets of the City of West Monroe, on a government-wide basis, exceeded its 
liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by $39,546,113 (net position). 

• At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of West Monroe's governmental funds 
reported combined ending fund balances of $25,936,813. 

• At the end of the current fiscal year, the unassigned fund balance for the general fund was 
$8,412,407 or 35% of the total general fund expenditures. 

• The general fund reported a surplus of $3,815,449 before transfers, and a surplus of 
$120,499 after transfers. 

• The City completed many projects that included improvements to infrastructure as well 
as ongoing constructions projects including the West Monroe Sports Complex. The 
additions and improvements to the City's Capital Assets totaled $19,548,291 in the 
current year. 

• The City's bonded debt had a net increase of $15,192,000 mainly due to the issuance of 
$17,000,000 in additional bonded debt. Total bonded debt at June 30, 2023, was 
$44,381,000. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City of West 
Monroe's basic financial statements. The City's basic financial statements comprise three 
cornponents: 

• Government-wide financial statements, 
• Fund financial statements, 
• Notes to the financial statements. 

This report contains other supplernentary inforrnation in addition to the basic financial staternents 
themselves. 
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The basic financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the 
City: 

• The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both 
long-term and short-term information about the City's overall tinancial status. 

• The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on indnidual parts of 
the City's government, reportine the City's operations in more detail than the 
government-wide statements. 

- The governniental fund statements tell how general government services like 
public safety were financed in the short terni as well as what amounts remain for 
future spending. 

- Proprietary fund statements offer short and long-tenn financial information about 
the activities the eovernment operates like businesses, such as the public utilities 
(water, sewer, sewer treatment systems). 

- Fiduciary fund statements provide information about the financial relationship in 
which the City acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others, to whom 
the resources in question belong. 

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the inftwmation in the financial 
statements and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required 
supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in the financial 
statements. 

In the past, the primary focus of local government financial statements has been summarized fund 
type intbrmation on a current tinancial resources basis. However, with the implementation of 
Statement No. 34 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB Statement No. 34) 
for June 30, 2003, the new focus is on both the City as a whole (government-wide) and the fund 
financial statements. Each view provides a different snapshot of the City's finances. The 
eovernment-wide tinancial statements provide both long-term and short-term information about 
the City's ot erall financial status. The fund financial statements focus on the indi‘idual parts of 
the City government, reporting the City's operations in more detail than the government-wide 
statements. Both perspectives (government-wide and fund) allow the user to address relevant 
questions. broaden the basis of comparison (year-to-year or government-to-go‘ eminent) and 
enhance the City's accountability. 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS 

The government-wide statements report information about the City of West Monroe as a whole 
using accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The Statement of 
Net Position and the Statement of Activities. which are the government-wide statements. include 
all of the government's assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is 
similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year's 
revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

These two government-wide statements report the City's net position and how they have changed. 
Net position — the difference between the City's assets and liabilities — is one wav to measure the 
City's financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City's net 
position is an indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. Other non-

 

6 



fmancial factors such as changes in the City's property tax hase and the condition of the City's 
roads and other infrastructure may need to be considered to assess the overall health of the City. 
In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the City is divided into two 
categories: 

• Governmental activities — Most of the City's basic services are included here. such as the 
activities of the police, fire, public works, social services, parks and recreation 
departments. and general administration. Sales taxes and grants finance most of these 
activities. 

• Business-type activities — The City charges fees to customers to cover the cost of certain 
services it prol, ides. The City's water, sewer. and sewer treatment are included here. 

Government-wide financial statements include not only the City of West Monroe itself (the 
primary government), but also a legally separate City Court and legally separate City Marshal thr 
which the Citv of West Monroe is financially accountable. Financial information for these 
component units is reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary 
2overnment itself. 

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The format of the fund financial statements will be more familiar to traditional users of 
government financial statements. The fund financial statements provide more detailed 
information about the City's most significant funds — not the City as a whole Funds are 
accounting mechanisms that the City uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and 
spending for particular purposes. 

The Citv has three kinds of fiinds: 

• Governmental funds — Most of the City's basic services are included in governmental 
funds, which focus on ( ) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be 
converted to cash tlow in and out and (2) the halances remaining at year-end that are 
available for vending Consequently, the governmental fund statements provide a 
detailed short-term view that helps the reader determine whether there are more or fewer 
financial resources that can be spent in the near future to tinance the City's programs. 
Because this information does not encompass the long-term focus of the 2ovemment-
wide statements, additional information is provided on a subsequent page that explains 
the relationship (or differences) between the government-wide and fund statements. 

• Proprietary funds — Sen ices for which the City charges customers a fee are generally 
reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds. like the government-wide statements, 
provide both short-term and long-term financial information. The City's enterprise funds 
(one type of proprietary fund) are the same as its business-type activities, but they 
provide more detail and additional information. such as cash flows. The City also uses 
internal service funds (another kind of proprietary fund) to report activities that provide 
supplies and services for the City's other programs and activities — such as the Employees 
Health lnsurance Fund. 

• Fiduciary funds — Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency 
capacity for others outside the government. The City maintains a Cemetery Mist Fund 
and a Workers Compensation Reserve Fund These activities are reported in a separate 
statement of fiduciary net assets. The City excludes this activity from its government-
wide fmancial statements because the City cannot use these assets to finance its 
operations 
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The Total Govemmental Funds column requires reconciliation because of the different 
measurement focus from the government-wide statements (current financial resources versus total 
economic resources), which is reflected at the bottom of or following each statement. The tlow 
of current tinancial resources will reflect hond proceeds and interfund transfers as other tinancing 
sources, as well as capital expenditures and bond principal payments as expenditures. The 
reconciliation will eliminate these transactions and incorporate the capital assets and long-term 
obligations (bond and others) into the Governmental Activities column (in the governmem-wide 
statements). 

FINANCLU ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A VVHOLE 

The City's combined net position for the 2022-2023 tiscal year increased by $10,614,745. Table 
l shows the statement of net position for the year ending 2022 and the year ending 2023. The 
table also shows the net position for governmental activities, business type activities and 
combines them into the total primary 2overnment. 

Statement of Net Position  

The following table reflects the condensed statement of net position: 

TABLE 1 

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL AND BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES 

ha Milhous) 

:ASSETS: 

GOVERNMENTAL 
ACTIVITIES 

BUSINESS TYPE 
ACTIVITIES 

TOTAL PRLMARY 
GOVERNMENT 

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 

Current and other ASSCIS S 27 11 $ 19 13 $ 1 20 S I 25 3 28 31 S 2038 

Carnal Assets 65  48 4".'5 23 3:; 23 35 85 81 71 10 

Total Assets S 92 59 $ 66.88 $ 21 53 S 24 60 $ 11 7  12 S vt IA 

LIABILITIES 
Loun-ternt debt outstaniling S - 3.0)4 S 46.4o $ 4 87 $ 3.40 $ 77 95 S 49 50 

other habibties 4.c8 3 Ed tt 51 0.48 5119 4 29 

Total Liabilities s S 50.21 $ 5 3s 5 3.5s $ 83 04 s 54 HY 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES: 

      

Deferred billows S 6 4(1 s I3.8I S tt 87 1. I.(4 $ 7r S 15.45 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES: 

      

Deferred Outflows S 11 19 $ 6 23 3 l 54 S $ 12 S 6.99 

NET POSITION. 

Invested w Capital Assets 

      

Net of debt S 20.3_1 $ 19 11 S 22 74 S 22 70 S 43 07 S1181 

Restmted 

  

08 o8 08 08 

Unrestricteil (.6n, Srlii $ (3 01) 1, (2 94) 5(3 61) (12.95) 

Total Net PoUtion 5 S `).10 $ 1981 S 19 54 $ 39 54 S 28 94 
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Net position (assets less habihties) may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's 
financial position. The City of West Monroe's assets exceeded liabilities by $39.54 million at the 
close of the fiscal year. 

Approxitnately eighty-thousand of the City's net position is subject to restrictions. 

Governmental Activities 

Net position of the City's governmental activities increased from $9.10 million to $19.73 million. 

Business-type Activities 

Net position of the City's busmess-type activities decreased from S19.84 million to $19.81 
milhon. 

Statement of Activities 

The following table shows the revenues and expenses uf the governmental and business-type 
activities: 

TABLE 2 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

 

tin 

COVERNNIENTAL 
ACTIVITIEN 

BUSLNESS TYPE 
ACTIVITIES 

TOTAL PRIMARY 
GOVERNMENT 

2u23 2(t22 2023 2022 2ia)3 2022 
REVENITES: 

      

Progi2IIIRevenues 

      

Charges for sets-Ices S 4 33 S 4.1)2 $ 51,3 S A 12 S 10 16 S 10.14 
Operating grants and contlibutions s 48 7 44 

  

5 98 7 44 
Cajoadl gints dm! stontrihuoions S 10 4-1 

  

X Ito -1-1 
General Revenues 

      

Polarity Taxes 1 17 1 42 

  

1 17 I 42 
Otlier taxes 3to 63 28 3:s 

  

30 63 ZS 38 
Intergovernmental 0 10 0 ir 

  

to Ito 0 07 
Franchise I 09 0 99 

  

1 09 0 99 
Miscellaneous 39 0 or 

  

39 0 r 
Sale..f Assels 51 84 

  

51 .84 
Excess Premnun on Bonds 1119 - 

  

1 119 - 
Interest earned 0 17 0113 

  

(I 17 0 03 

Caintal Lontrnuitions 

 

_ , 1 0 59 2 10 .39 
Total Reveintes $ 53.5o S -13 - 0 $ 5 6 ¶ ¶ c0.2I 

EXPENSES: 

      

General government S 10.5-  $ 9.70 

  

g It) 57 S 9.70 
Pliblic safetv 13 71 10 3,3 

  

13 71 1038 
Publit works 5 16 4 44 

  

5 16 4 44 
Culture and ret reauons 5 71 -1 47 

  

5 71 4 -17 
Urban Devdoptuent -..8 l 04 

  

78 l to4 
Health and welfare 4 26 3 72 

  

4 26 3 7" 
Intel est on lonc-terni deb/ 1 99 I 17 

  

1 9to 1 1' 
Utilities 

 

- 8 41 8.11 5 41 8 II 
Total Expenses S. 42 18 $ 34.92 S 8.41 S 8.11 S 5059 $ 43 u3 

Increase (Drkleasel in net i ocosition 

      

Brfole trallstiN S 11.38 S 8.78 S t 48) $ (I 60) S. 10 90 S 7.1i 

Transfris (.74! 

 

46 

 

( 28) 

 

Illernise Aria ease ill position S 10 64 1. K 7K S t 021 S (1 60) S 10 62 S 7.1B 
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Governmental Activities 

The City's total revenues from governmental activities increased trom S43.72 million (year end 
2022) to $53.56 million (year end 2023). The largest source of the increase m the current year 
revenues is from an increase in sales taxes collected as well as an increase in capital grants that 
were recen ed as a results of the increase in capital improvernents. West Monroe's largest source 
of general revenue ($30.63 million) is taxes, composed of property tax, sales tax, insurance 
premium taxes, and beer tax. 

Fifty-seven percent of the City's revenue from governmental activities comes from these taxes. 
Capital grants and contributions (58.10 million) were the second largest revenue source for 
governmental activities. 

The City's expenses from governmental activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, were 
$42.18 million, an increase of $7.26 million from year end 2022. These expenses cover a wide 
range of services with the largest being public safety $13.71 million or 3_1p•o. and general 
government $10.57 million or 25%. 

Business-Type Activities 

The total revenues from business-type activities were 57.93 million for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2023. Charges fbr services decreased by approximately $0.29 million. Expenses fbr the 
City's business-type activities were $8.41 million. 

FINANACIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS 

The City of West Monroe uses Fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. 

Government Funds 

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide inforniation on near-term inflows, 
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's 
fmancing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a 
government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending 
fund balances of $25.94 million. 

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the tiscal year, unassigned 
fund balance of the general fiind was $8.41 million. As a measure of the general fund liquidity, it 
may he useful to compare unassigned fund balance to total expenditures. Unassigned fund 
balance represents 35% of the total general fund expenditures. Due to the uncertain economic 
conditions, expenditures were closely monitored and correlated to revenues received 

The City spent a total of $13.25 million out of the 86 Sales Tax Capital Fund to fund major 
capital projects and purchases. This amount increased by $4.38 million from last year. The fund 
transferred out 5.86 million to pay for debt service. The fund also received $4.54 to help fund 
current and future capital improvements. 
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Proprietary Funds 

The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide 
fmancial statements. but in more detail. 

Net position of the Utilities Enterprise Fund at the end of the year were $19.81 milhon. The fund 
had an operating loss tor the year of $2.58 million after depreciation and prior to transfers. 

Net position of the Internal Service fimd (Employees Health Insurance Fund) at the end of the 
year was 50. 

General Fund Bud2etary  

Over the course of the year, the City Council revised the City budget once. The difference 
between the original expenditure budget and the actual aniount of expenditures was an increase of 
5.59 million. Actual total re‘emies were $3.72 million more than the original budget. 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital ..Assets  

The following table shows the Capital Assets (net of depreciation) of the governmental and 
business type activities: 

TABLE 3 
CAPIIAL. ASSETS 

(NET OF DEPRECLAT1ON m mill(ons) 

 

GOVERNMENTAL 
ACTIVITIES 

BUSINESS TYPE 
ACTIVTTTES TOTAL 

2023 

 

2022 2023 2022 2023 21122 

Lind S 6.91 S I.. 91 S 0 07 $ 0.07 S 6 98 S 6.9N 

Construction ni progreNs 18 55 

 

1 71 

  

18 55 1.71 

Buildnigs 11 97 

 

12 72 

  

11 9" 1232 

Improvements 3 iti 

 

3 i3 

  

319 3.13 

Equipment 1 02 

 

59 

  

102 0.59 

Vehicles 52 

 

.58 

  

.5' .58 

hifrastructure 21 60 

 

22 11 

  

21 60 22.11 

Water Plant - 

  

5 52 -7., 1 5 5' 7.91 

Treanurin and Reuse Plant 

   

11 -1 15.3S 1-1 '4 15.38 

Total S 64 of; S 47.75 S 2:1 3:1 '1, S "111 

The City of West Monroe's investment in Capital assets tor its govenunental and husiness-tvpe 
activities as of June 30, 2023, amounts to 587 39 nnllion (net of depreciation). This is an increase 
of $16.28 milhon from last year. This investment includes land, construction in progress, 
buildings and improvements, equipment, vehicles, infrastructure, water, and sewer treatment 
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plant. The biggest addition is the construction of West Monroe Sports Complex that is still 
ongoing as of June 30, 2023. 

Long-term Debt 

The following table shows the City's outstanding debt: 

 

YR END 
6/30/23 

Table 4 — 
Outstanding Debt 

YR END 
6/30/22 

Bond Payable Series 2010 $ 591,000 $ 654,000 

Bond Payable Series 2022 $ 16,820,000 

 

Community Dev. Block Grant 
for Economic Development $ 78,685 $ 103,681 
Bond Payable Series 2015 $ 17,315,000 $ 18.460,000 
Bond Payable Series 2018 $ 9,655,000 $ 10,075,000 

Heart and Lung Disability $ 137,894 $ 148,098 

Vacation, Sick and Comp. Time $ 1,073,800 $ 1,107,925 

Total $ 45,671,379 $ 30,548,704 

At the end of the fiscal year, the City of West Monroe had total bonded debt outstanding of 
$44.38 million. This is an increase of $14.63 million in total bond debt. 

The City of West Monroe's total long-term debt obligations at year end were $45.67 million. 

Additional information of the City's long-term debt can be found in Note 12 in the Notes to the 
Financial Statements. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET 

The City's management and elected officials considered many factors when preparing the 2023-
2024 budget. The major factor in preparing the budget is to determine the revenue that will be 
generated from sales tax. Sales tax accounts for 75% of the total General Fund revenue. The 
sales tax income projected for the 2023-2024 budget is $22.89 million. All other General Fund 
revenues should remain consistent with prior year collections. The total General Fund revenue 
budget for the 2023-2024 fiscal year is $28.14 million compared to $27.68 million of actual 
revenue for 2022-2023. 

The budgeted expenses for the 2023-2024 fiscal year are $25.02 million, a small increase from 
the prior year's actual expenses. 

Most of the City's expenses have remained constant. The Citys matching contributions to the 
pension systems have increased slightly for the 2023-2024 fiscal year. However, depending on 
the condition of the investment markets and other factors the City's contribution to the pension 
systems should remain constant this fiscal year to the next. The City's administration will closely 
monitor all revenues and expenses to ensure the City maintains a positive fund balance. The 
projected General Fund balance for the year ending June 30, 2024, is $12.22 million. 
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C)THER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

In the year ended June 30, 2023, the City of West Monroe has complied with requirements of 
Government Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 75, Accounting und Financial 
Reporting fin. Post Employment Benefits Other than Pen.sions. This statement requires that 
employers disclose the Schedule qf Changes in Net OPEB Liabilny and Related Ratios as 
determined by actuarial computations. The disclosure of these amounts are presented in more 
detail in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

PENSIONS 

In the year ended June 30. 2023. the City of West Monroe has complied with requirements of 
Government Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 68, Accounung and Financial 
Reporting .10r Pensions. This statement requires that employers disclose the MI Pension 
Liability. Deferred li?fions and Dekrred Outflows as determined by actuarial computations. The 
disclosure of these amounts are presented in more detail in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION 

The financial report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayer, customers. investors, and creditors 
with a general overview of the City's finances and to demonstrate the City's accountability for 
the funds it receives. If you have anv questions ahout this report or need additional mformation, 
contact the Finance Director, City of West Monroe. 2305 North 7th  Street. West Monroe, 
Louisiana 71291. 
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PRIMARY GOVERNMENT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL. STATEMENTS 



CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION  

JUNE 30. 2023  

ASSETS 

 

Primary Government 

 

Component 
Units 

Govenunental 
Activities 

Brisiness-Type 
Activities Total 

    

C'ash and Cash Etpuvalents $ 20,054,958 $ 295,110 $ 211,350,078 $ 815,880 
Investments 3,603,940 - 3,603,940 

 

Accounts Receivable 595.604 1.056.184 1.651.188 5.469 
Minimum Lease Payments Receivable 81.315 - 

 

81.315
 

Due Front Other Governments 2.738.488 

 

2.738.488 

 

Internal Balances 10,713 (157.340) (146.627) (2.1500) 
Inventories 1 3,5'9 

 

'3.519 

 

Lease Asset (Net) 1.426,965 

 

1.426.965 

 

Capital Assets 

    

Non-Depieciable 25.757.11 7 

 

25.531.277 

 

Depreciable 3:3.296.31)5 5 23.2;
1
7 i I 141 61.554.119 

 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 92.588.944 $ 24.525.928 5 I 17.114.872 $ 818.549 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 11,194.313 1,537,846 12,732,159 33,710 

LLABILITIES 

    

Accounts Payable $ 1.112.877 $ 19.529 S 1.132.4Ni $ 917 
Deposils Payable 58,857 217.488 276.345 

 

Non-furrent Liabilities 

    

Due Within One Year 

    

Bonds Payable 2.120.000 63.000 2.183.000 

 

Notes Payable 25.000 

 

25.00Ir 

 

Lease Liability 381r.81r7 

 

380.807 

 

C)ther Long-Term Liabihnes 882,515 209.918 1.092.433 

 

Due in More Titan One Year 

    

Bonds Payable 41.670,00i i 528.0(10 42.198.0(10 

 

Notes Payable 53.685 

 

53.685 

 

Lease Liability 979.219 

 

979.219 

 

Other Long-Terrn Liabilities 119.261 

 

119.261 

 

Net Pension Liability 26.174.53n 1.656.550 29.831.080 103.266 
Net C)PEB Liability 4.078,996 683.378 4.762.324 

 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 77.655.747 5,377.813 83,033.560 104.183 

DEFERREI) INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 6.31 )5.479 871.879 7,267.358 

 

NET POSITION 

    

Net Investment in Capital Assets 20.330.371 22.740.964 43.01 1.335 

 

Restricted for Debt Service 

 

7  7.632 7  7.632 - 
Restricted for Judicial 

 

- - 32.846 
Restricted for Public Safety 

  

- 490.260 
Unrestricted_ Capital Pi ojects 8.896,244 

 

S.896.?d•# - 
Unrestricted_ Debt Seivice 1.288,1135 

 

1.288.035 

 

Unrestricled, Um eserved (10.782.619) (3.004.514) (13.787.133) 224.970 

TOTAL NET POSITION  $ 1 0.712.031 $ 19.814.082 $ 39.546.113 $ 748.076 

The accompanying notes are an integral pail of this financial starement 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

Function/Program Activities 
Primary Government: 

Ex enses 

 

Program Revenues 

 

Charges for 
Services 

Operating 
Cirants and 

Contributions 

Capital 
Grants and 

Contributions 

    

Government Activities: 
General Government $ 10.567,243 $ 1,386,153 $ 541.524 $ 4,500,272 
Public Safety 13,712,790 144,685 2,351,477 

 

Public Works 5,155.578 1.161,031 

  

Culture and Recreation 5.705,464 1,615,721 213,293 3,605,472 
Urban Redevelopment 789,083 

   

Health and Welfare 4,270,547 23.993 2.870,460 

 

Interest on Long-Term Debt 1.991.001 

   

Total Governmental Activities 42.191,706 4,331,583 5,976,754 8.105.694 

Business-Type Activities: 

     

8.415,422 5,834,600 

  

Total Primary.  Government  S 50.607,128 $ 10,166,183 5,976,754 $ 8,105.694 

Component Units: 

    

City Court $ 548,153 $ 514.724 S 

 

City Marshal 482,916 493,992 

  

Total Component Units S 1.031,069 S 1,008,716 

  

(;eneral Revenues: 
Taxes. 

Property Taxes Levied for General Purposes 
Property Taxes Levied for Street Maintenance 
Sales Taxes 
Insurance Premium Taxes 

Intergovernmental Revenues 
Franchise Revenue 
Miscellaneous 
Special Item - Sale of Assets 
Excess Premium on Bonds 
Earnings on Investments 
Capital Contributions 
Transfers 

Total General Revenues, Special Items and Transfers 
Changes in Net Position  

Net Position - Beginning  

Net Position - Fnding 



Changes in Net Assets 
Primary Government 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-Type 
Activities Total 

Component 
Units 

$ (4,139,294) $ S (4,139.294) $ 
(11,216,62x) 

 

(11,216,628) 

 

(3,994.547) 

 

(3,994,547) 

 

(271,02)+) 

 

(271,028) 

 

(789,083) 

 

(789,083) 

 

(1,376,094) 

 

(1.376,094) 

 

(1,991,001) 

 

(1,991.001) 

 

23,777,675) 

 

(23,777.675) 

  

12,580,822) (2,5Z+0.S72) 

 

S(23,777,675) S (2.580,822) $ (26.358,497) $ 

   

$ (33,429) 

   

11,1)76 

   

S (12.353) 

1,172,019 

 

1.172,019 

 

281,918 

 

281,918 

 

29,802,302 

 

29,802,302 

 

545,991 

 

545,991 

 

106,147 

 

106.147 

 

1,092,697 

 

1,092.697 

 

388,487 

 

388,487 

 

505,070 

 

505,070 

 

1,092,697 

 

1,092,697 

 

167,609 

 

167,609 1.7,7 

 

2.096.929 ',096.9.)9 

 

(740,578) 461.954 (278.624) 

 

34,414,359 1,558,883 36.973,242 

 

10,636,684 (21,939) 10,(i14,745 (22,096) 

9.095,347 19,836.021 28,931,368 770,172 

$ 19,732,031 $ 19,814,082 $ 39.546,113 $ 748,076 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 
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PRIMARY GOVERNMENT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FIJND FINANCLAL STA ILMENTS 



CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA 

BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2023  

ASSETS 

General Filth! 
86 Sales Tax 

CC'il Capital Fund ARP k Fund 
7,j27 Dcbt 

Capiral Fund 

S 7.447.090 

2.566 '56 

S l .53o.09S S 1.262,934 

1.037.684 

S 6.892.8"1 
- 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
hwestaneuts 

Accounts Receivable 3n7.106 

  

203 676 

Minimum Lease Pavment Receivable 81.315 - 

  

Due FlOill ()Mei Cauvermuents 1.658 646 6C.105 

  

Due From Other Funds 820.266 165.5-11 

 

1 506 
Ins entones 23.529 - 

  

TOTAL ASSETS S 12."64 2 308,7-14 S 2.300.61S S 7.098.O3 

LIABILITIES 

    

Accounts Payable ~52.s59 $ l2n.881 S 

 

Duc Tu Other Funds B5 541 o-15,765 

  

Deposits Payable 58.857 

   

Total Liabilities 946.957 

   

DEFERRED INFLOW'S OF RESOURCES 

    

Unearned Reienne 

    

Tntal Deferred Inflows of Resnurces 

    

FUND BALANCE 

    

Nonspendahle 104.844 

   

Restricted 

  

2.301Va I B 7.098,053 

Communed 

    

Assigned 3.500.O0 1.52o.098 

  

unassigned S.4 l2.407 

   

Total Fond Balances 25 I 1 536.098 2,300.615 7 605,053 

TOT AL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
S 12.064 208 S 2 305.744 S 2.3u0.61E S 7.O5,O3 RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCE 



CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA 

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL  

FL-NDS BALANCES TO STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUN E 30, 2023  

Total Taal Ciuvernmental Fund Balances w 25.936.1113 

Nominator Total 

Governmental Govetameutal .-Insoont.,• reported Or governmrwa; 

Fun& Fnad. artivines 01 the statement qf net 

{+osition are &Arent become: 

S '.91%.965 S 20.054.95R ('apital assets (including lease assets) used in governmental 

3,603 940 acmilies Mr nut financial resources 

21.597 c93.379 and therefoie me nut reported in the 
RI.315 funds 05.480.391 

472 737 2,73° 486 
465.962 1.-153.275 Nei OPEB Liability (4.07R.996) 

135 m 

Deferrcd Onffluus Related to OPEB 1 14-1.443 
S 2,677  261 S 2s‘.c4F, Ss‘LI Defencil Inflows Related to OPEB (4 645.7281 

Tutal DelCrred Inflows:Outflows Related to OPEB I.3.501.2651 

Net Pension Liability (26.174.530) 
S `3.4.431 S i.112.b77 

650,03] i,440 .437 DefenVil iltA4 Related to Pensions 

56.657 Deferied Inflows Related to Pensions 
R92.468 2.612.u71 TOI31DelCrres1 Inflows:Outflows Related to Pensions 

Long-term liabilities. including bonds 
and nutcs payable, capital lemes 30,1 

onupeusated air ma due and 

payable in tbe current pei iod and tbere6we 
are itm leported in the fluids 

104.644 The internal service fund is used bv management 
1.329.820 I0.726.491 to charge the coil of certain Nilvitlec to 

individual fluids The assets and liabilities 

I.730.1R" 6.7o6.285 of the internal seivice Mild are included in 
C1%.214) R..,137,lo3 governmental activities iu the statement ut 

2.984,79 4 25.036  Si 4 net position 

S 3.1O'7  261 S 28.5-1F F8-I 

11 049.1O0 

O.749.751) 
6.300.1 l 9 

46.2.1m-1671 

Net Position of Om ennueutal 

Activities S 19 732.03t 

The accompanymg notes are an integral pan of this financial statement 
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( in' OF WEST NIONROE, LOUISIANA  
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALAM: ES 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS  

FOR TETE YEAR ENDED JUNE 311. 2023  

Revenues 
1..4eue; 91 Fuud 

86 S.iles Tax 
7 5% Cap11.11 F1111.1 ARM Fund 

2022 Dad 
aptial Emu) 

     

I.44;e, 1 20.996.9%7 $ 7,030.51.4 il - 

 

Intergoverrunentai1 

 

101.34' 4.240 sS1 2..161 092 

 

License. awl Permit. 

 

1 10S...400 - 

  

Charge. for :Services 

 

2 S4S...420 

   

Fines and Flulfeln Ire*: 

 

277.763 

   

Use ul Mnney and Property 

 

108.07% 611 37.684 19.991, 

Prism:Inst. Resenue 

 

1.092..697 

   

Sale of- Assets 

 

505.071:1 - 

  

Other 

 

357.182. 17,75ii 

 

3 O5.421 

Total Res roues 

 

2-. or.e.i.al 11.348,4r 2.:08 77t, i 025.411i 

Genei Ciovenunent 6.451.2h) 

   

Public Safety 1)55.06: 

   

Pubhc Works .4  411.520 

   

Culture and Recreation .4 112.40' 

   

13rbsii Redevelopment 612,0S2 

   

Healili and Wellare 

    

Capital Illiptuvemcid, 
(luau& Paid 

 

13.246.714 

 

l 4.620294 

Debt Sersice 

    

Principal Payineir 

 

257 lko" 

  

inlet-eta l 

 

175.266 

  

Total Expeuditui es 23.872 3S2 13,679.347 

 

14.620.294 

Excess (Deficient, i or Res cone, 

.4  S.15.449 12.331 39.11 2.298 -../qt lio 994.8-5) O,er Expenditures 

F1113111-  ilia :source% and (Usest 

    

PristeekEs Fruna Cienetal 0blig,,tion Bond, 

   

lio92.9o4 
Tr sirsters In 2.262.931 4 %41.296 

  

Trawiers Out 1 5 W.883) (858 1915 (2.262 934) 

 

Total °tiler Financing 

Sources and Uses (.4  094.O511.11 /kg...4 fir.' (2.262 9341 I( 092.1404 

Net C flange in FU011 Balance 120,11)9 1 .1%1.71 7 14 .;14:: 7.(141,i.029 

Fuod Balances - Beginning 11 S9-.752 184 Mil 2.264 7^0 24 

FEND B ILAN( EN ENDING 12.01 7.2 4 1 1.54,;.(+98 2.;00,1.16 - (NSA` .; 



CITV OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA 
RECONC ILLATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 

EXTENDITURES. AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE  

STAIE1tE\T OF A( I [MIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED TUNE 30,2023  

Nonmajor 

Goveitunental 

Funds 

Total 

Governmental 

Finals Net Change in Fund Balances - Total 

    

ernmental Fund: 

 

S X.504 9015 

S .3.7Xis.161 S 

    

3,005 145 4.959,167 Ameatev reported fel government:2i 

   

1 108..,Im aernines rn the gafentenf of th•Pleme, 

   

2 843,32o cue titeerent because 

   

27/."65 

   

I .261 I 67. ;69 (;otenintent tunas report ...vital outLys expendones Mule 

 

1.092.69-

 

- 505,tati 

721 311 4 701,664 

goseninienial activities repon depreciation expcir:e to alkmxte domie 
cy.penditure. Mel the life of the assets. 

Caprial asset purchases 

Depre:muon expense 

19 54:-5,291 

7.515 818 52.476.271 IJ 247.201)      

Lease As...et, Acquired 

Amoitization Expense 

447.091 

Posueluement benefit plan nel change - CiASB 310.11-42 

Pen.sion net ch.mge - C,ASB 68 622.119 

182 355 

402 34c 

261 091 

3 297.041 

1301.405 

4st.2sl 
lu 2r,-817 
a.H3.1155 

3.573,446 

6123182 

.4 297.04 l 

29.168.913 

1.769 990; 
I al 4.'35  

2 027,863 

I 991.Ol 

Repayment .s1 debt principal. Includinc capital leases 

is an cXpethiltlifc m the goverrunental funds, 

hut die lepayment reduces kmg-teini liabilities 

111 die ctatenielit nt het posi tion 2.038.067      
9.'01.468 Ol .202.961 

The issuance of loug-tenn ie capital 

kases provides cult ent funincisl iesominies to 
0 .514 e;Si/1 726,69II) emment funds Mu the repayment leduces 

lynx-tem liabilities in die ctatements of net as.zets 

- 13.0/92.904 hileinal Ser‘ me Mnd is te:ed by inaiugement to 

1,836 2i12 5.640 433 chat ge the .0,1 of certaut activitre,  to individual 

1422 7341 i9.501 '42i funds The net of the internal service 

tund is included in governmental amp, dies in Me 

4,•: statement ot net pc•sition 

I 1011.182i 8.5(04.90A 

3,085 975 17 431,us 

Some expenses reported in tlie statement ot at usides 

do Mit tegililt the use of financial 

resouri.es and therefore are nal repoited as 

expenditures in gineinmental funds 
 

   5i1.780 

b 2.91O.743 b 2.936.813     

   
Change in Net Position ut trosenmiental 

Acurthes `, I.C,Ci.I•N I      

I tie accompanying notes are an integral pail 01 llus tmanclai statement. 
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CITY OF WEST NIONROE. LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION  
PROPRIETARY FUNDS  

JUNE 30, 2023  

Business-Type Govenirnental 
Acto, Ines Ar.tivitIcs 

Internal Service 
Enterprise Fund Fund 

ASSETS 

   

Current Assets 
Acranuus Receivable. Net of Allowance 1.056.1gq S 2 225 
Dne From Other hulls 

Total C'm relit Assets 

   

l 056. I 

 

2 ' 15 

Nun-Cut I eol Asselk 

   

- Cl14tolner Depolls 

CaSh - Sinking Fund 
Casl, - Reserve Fund 

217.4Sti 
41.936 
34.696 

  

Tolal Restricted Cash 2./5.120 

  

Capital Assets: 

   

Laml 74.150 

  

Con,  utietion iu Process 

   

Sparta Reuse Plant 20.701.720 

  

Buildings 73.43tS 

  

Watcr Plant I 7.r2.395 

  

Wastewater Treatment Plant 16.150..560 

  

Machinery. Equipment & Other 2 658.566 

  

Less: Accumulated Depieciar ion (33.5•KR 12) 

  

Total Capital Assets 23 331.4A4 

  

TOTAL ASSETS S 24.653.265 S 2.225 

DEFERRED O1 TFLOWS OF RESOI R( ES 

   

Related to OPEB 191.721 

  

Related in Pensions 1.346.125 

  

Total Deferred Outflows ut Resources l.537.546 

  

LIABILITIES 

   

Current Liabilities 

   

Ao.oluil• Payable S l4.520 S 

 

Customet Deposits 217.488 

  

Acr.nied vacatiun dud Sick Pay 

   

Sewer Bonds Payable 
2
:.0 (0

93.91,3 

  

Due to Other Funds 157.340 

 

2 225 
Total Current Liab ilities 667.275 

 

2.225 

Long Term Liabilities 

   

Net OPEB Liability &83.32k; 

  

Nei Pelhaoll Liability 3.O6.550 

  

Sewer Bonds Paymble - Long-Term 528.O0 

  

Total Long Term Liabilities 4.867.g7g 

  

Total Liabilities 5.5.15.15i 

 

2.225 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Rel:ited lo OPE B 
Relaied tn pvnsions 

Total Defened Inflows of Resources 

NET POSITION 

93.610   
5- 1.87n 

  

Nel Investment in Capital Assets 22 740.9k4 
Reserved for Debt Retirement 7- M32 
Uurestrir.led (3.004.514)   

TOTAL NET POSITION S 19.514.052 

The notes ate an integral part of this finanuol statement. 

  

  



CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOI1ISI.4NA  
STATEIIENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION  
PROPRIETARY FUNDS  

FOR THE YEAR ENI)ED JUNE 30, 2023  

Operating Revenues 

Business-Type 
Activities 

Utility 
Enterprise Fund 

Governmental 
Activities 

Internal Service 
Fund 

  

User Charges $ 2,817,247 $ 2.744.696 
Treatment Plant Fees 1,443,563 

 

Water Penalties and Turn-on Fees 120,002 

 

Sewer District 5 Contributions I .451,476 

 

Miscellaneous Revenue 2,312 

 

Total Operating Revenues 5,834,600 2.744,696 

Operating Expenses 

  

Waterworks 1,142,036 

 

Sewerage 903,759 

 

Water Treatment Plant 606,168 

 

Sewer Treatment Plant 2,630,323 

 

Puhlic Works Construction 139.694 

 

Public Works Administrative 529,052 

 

Other Administrative 342,721 501.138 
Claims Paid 

 

2,364,289 
Interest Expense 2.800 

 

Depreciation '',118.869 

 

Total Operating Expenses 8.415,422 2,865,427 

Operating Income (Loss) (2,580,822) (120.731 

Contributed Capital 2,096,929 

 

Transfers In (Out) 461,954 120.731 
Total 2,558,883 120,731 

Changes in Net Position (21,939) 

 

Net Positiun - Beginning 19,816,021 

 

NET POSITION - ENDING  $ 19,814,mN2 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOtTISIANA 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  

PROPRIETARY FUNDS  

FOR THE YEAR ENI)ED JUNE 30, 2023  

Cash Flows From Operations 

Business-Type 
Ac tivities 

Utility 
Enterprise Fund 

Governmental 
Activities 

Internal Service 
Fund 

   

Receipts From Customers $ 5,788.986 $ 

 

Receipts From Group Contributions 

  

2,745.699 
Payments to Provide Services (5,841.851) 

 

(2,365.292) 
Payments for General and Adrninistrative (345.521) 

 

(5(11,138) 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (398.386) 

 

(120.731) 

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities 

   

Increase in Customer Deposits 16.422 

  

Operating Transfers In (Out) 461.954 

 

120.731 
Net Cash Flows From Noncapital 

Financing Activities 478.376 

 

120.731 

Cash Flows From Capital and Related 

   

Financing Activities 

   

Acquisitions of Capital Assets ',096.929 

  

Capital Contribution From Other Funds (2.09(G.929) 

  

Bond Proceeds 

   

Principal Paid on Bonds (63,000) 

  

Net Cash Flows From Capital and Related 
Financing Activities (63.000) 

  

Net Increase in Cash antl Cash Equivalents 16,990 

  

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 278.130 

  

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 295,120 $ 

 

Classified As: 

   

Cash in Bank S 

  

Restncted Assets 295,120 

  

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  295.120 

  



Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash 

Business-Type 
Ac tivities 

Utility 
Enterprise Fund 

Governmental 
Activities 

Internal Service 
Fund 

  

Provided bv Operating Activities: 

  

Changes in Net Position $ (2,580.822) $ (120.731) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Loss to Net 

  

Cash Used by Operating Activifies 

  

Depreciation 2,118,869 

 

(increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable (253.638) 1.003 
(Decrease) Increase in Accounts Payable (64.823) 

 

(Increase) Decrease in Due Froin Other Funds 165.242 

 

increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Funds 157,340 (1.003) 
increase in Net Pension Liability and Deferrals (Net) 120.332 

 

Decrease in Net OPEB Liability and Defernds (Net) (77.550) 

 

Increase (Decrease)in Accrued Vacafion and Sick Pay 16.664 

 

Total Adjustments 2,182,436 

 

Net Cash Provided (Used) IP; Operatinst Activities  S (398.386) (120,731) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS  
IUNE 30, 2023 

 

Total 
Component Unit 
Custodial Funds 

 

Private-Purpose City C'ity 

 

Trust Funds Court Marshal 
ASSETS 

   

Cash and Cash Equivalents S 1,242.460 S 4.580 $ 143.650 
Investments 18.191 

  

Accounts Receivable 2,000 

 

6,095 
Due Froni Other Funds 148.627 

  

TOTAL ASSETS S 1,411,278 S 4,580 S 149,745 

LIABILITIES 

   

Due to Other Funds S 2,000 S 

 

Due to Others 

  

7,940 

TOTAL LIABILITES S 2.000 S 7.940 

NET POSITION 

   

Reserved 

   

Workmen's C'ompensation C'laims 534.499 

  

Park Equipment 148.627 

  

Cemetery Maintenance 726,152 

  

Cash Bond Refunds 

  

141.805 
Restitution 

 

4.580 

 

Insurance Claims 

   

Unassigned 
Total Net Position 

   

1,409.278 4.580 141.805 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 

   

NET POSITION  S 1,411,278 S 4,580 S 149,745 

I-he accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN  

FIDUCIARY NET POSITION  

FIDUCIARY FUNDS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

Additions 

Total 

Pnvate -Purpose 

Trust Fund 

 

Component Unit 
Custodial Funds 

 

City 

cotul 

City 

Marshal 

    

Sales Tic( 24.000 S 

  

Lot Sales 35.440 

   

Insuraiwe Proceeds 113.061 

   

Park Fees 35.062 

   

Cash Bonds Collected 

   

39.600 

Restitution Collected 

  

37.166 

 

Connibutions 81.324 

   

Interest 
Total Revenues 

  

37.1m, 

 

288.887 39.600 

Deductions 

    

Hasley Cemetery 

    

Claims Paid 4I5.6S5 

   

Restitutions Paid 

  

37.186 

 

Cash Bonds Disbursed 

   

44.S68 

Miscellaneous 100.224 

   

Total Expenditures c15.009 

 

37.1:36 

 

Ewes, (Deficiency) of Additions 
f": 2 2 

  

(5,268) Cher Deductions 

Other Financing Sources (Usesk 

278.624 

   

()penning Transfers - In (Out) 

Change in Net l'o,.ition 51.602 

   

Net Position - Beginning 1.357.676 

 

-1.5sn 147m-3 

NE I POSITION - ENDING S 1 -1u9,27 

  

141,805 

The accialipanyulu notes are an intetnal part of this financial statement. 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION  

ALL DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS  
II NE. 30. 2023  

ASSETS 

 

City 

Com 
City 

Marshal T.ital 

$ 775.652 
- 

S 40.228 
5,469 

- 

I KI5,880 

5.469 
- 

Cash awl Cash Equivalents 
Accounts Recen able 
Due From Other Fluids 

T()IAL ASSEIS $ 775,652 S -15.697 $ 821,349 

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURI ES 

 

33.71U 

 

33,710 

LIABILITIES 

    

Auount Payable $ 

 

S 31 $ 31 
Payioll Liabilities 

 

886 - 886 

Due to Fiduciary Fund - Component Unit 

  

2,800 2.800 

Due to City of West Monroe 

    

Non-Ciment Lialithnes 

Net PrIIS1011 

 

103,266 

 

103,266 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

 

104,152 2 831 106,983 

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 

    

NET POsITION 

    

Restneted for: 

    

Civil Ci awl Filings 

 

490,26U 

 

490,260 
Gaiinshments 

  

2 256 2,256 

Sales and Seizures 

  

1.867 1.867 
Equipment and Training 

  

28.723 28,713 

1:iirestricted. unreserveil 

 

214,95u 10,020 224.970 
Total Net Position 

 

705,21u 42.866 748,076 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 
t SU9.362 S 45 697 S !.55 059 NET POSITION  

The aLLonipanying notes are an inte.....ratilart of tins financial statement 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LA  
COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES  

ALL. DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

Net (Expenses) Revenues and 

Program Rex enues Changes in Net Position 

Activities 

Charges 

for 

Expenses Services 

Intergoxernmental - 

City of West 

Monroe 

CU). 

Court 

City 

Marshal Total 

CAN Court 

     

Judicial S1.161.321 $ 514,724 $ 6B.168 S (33.429) $ S (33.429) 

CitN Marshal 

Judicial 1,055,758 493.992 572.842 

 

11.076 11,076 

Total Governmental 

Actix ities S1.717.079 S1.006.716 6 1,186.010 S (33,429) $ 11,076 S (22.353), 

 

General Revenues: 

     

Interest 

 

257 

 

257 

 

Change in Net Position 

 

(33.172) 11.076 (22.096) 

 

Net Position Julv l, .211)? 

 

738.38' 31.790 770.17' 

 

Net Position June 30. "")0' ; 

 

S 705.210 $ 42.866 S 748.076 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA  
NOTES T() THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

INTRODUC'TION 

The City of West Monroe, Louisiana (the City) consists of an executive branch of go% ailment headed by a 
mayor and a legislatk e branch of government consisting of tive aldermen. The City's major operations 
include police and fire protection, garbage and trash collection, a senior center. street and dramage 
maintenance, administrative services. and other health and welfare activities. In addition. the City operates a 
utility Enterprise Fund to provide water and sewerage services. 

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The Governmental Accounting Standard.s Board (GASB) promulgates generally accepted 
accounting principles and reporting standards with respect to activities and transactions of state and 
local government entities. The GASB has issued a codification of governmental accounting and 
financial reporting standards. This codification and subsequent GASB pronouncements are 
recopized as generally accepted accounting principles for state and local government. The 
financial reporting practices of the City comply with the financial reporting standar& established 
by the GASB. 

A. Financial Reporting Entity 

As the municipal governing authority, for reporting purposes, the City of West Monroe, 
Louisiana is considered a separate financial reporting entity. The financial reporting entity 
consists of (a) the primary government, the City of West Monroe, Louisiana, (b) organizations 
for which the primary government is financially accountable. and (c) other organizations for 
which the nature and significance of their relationship with the City are such that exclusion 
would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 

GASB Statement 14 established criteria for determining which, if any, component units should 
he considered pan of the City of West Monroe, Louisiana for financial reporting purposes. The 
basic criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is 
accountability. The GASB has set forth criteria to be considered in determining financial 
accountability. These criteria include appointing a voting majority of an organization's 
governing body and (1) the ability of the City to impose its will on that organization or (2) the 
potential for the oreanization to provide specific financial henetits to, or impose specific 
fmancial hurdens on, the City. Organizations for which the City does not appoint a voting 
majority but are fiscally dependent on the City and organizations for which the reporting entity 
financial statements would be misleading if data of the organization is not included because of 
the nature or significance of the relationship. Based on the previous criteria. the City has 
determined that the following component units are part of the reporting entity. 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA  
NOTES T() THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

A. Financial Reporting Entity (continued) 

City Court of West Monroe 

The City Court of West Monroe is a legally separate entity. The Judge of the Court iN an 
independently elected official The City provides office space, court facilities including some 
furnishings, and compensation for court employees. The Court provides no direct services to 
the City. However, based on second criteria noted above, it has been determined that the court 
is a component unit of the City and should be included in the City's financial statements 
through discrete presentation 

City Marshal of West Monroe 

The City Marshal of West Monroe office is a legally separate entity. The City Marshal is an 
independently elected official. The City provides office space, furnishings and compensation 
for Marshal ernployees. Based on second criteria above, it has been determined that the City 
Marshal of West Monroe is a component unit of the City and should be included in the City's 
financial statements through discrete presentation. 

B. Goverument-Wide aud Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (the statement of net position and the statement of 
activities) report information of all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City. For the most part, 
the effect of interfimd activity has been removed from these government-wide statements. 
Governmental activities. which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental 
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely, to a significant 
extent on fees and charges for support. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
function, segment or component unit are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those 
that are clearly identifiable with a specific function, segment or component unit. Program 
re% ermes include charges to customers who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods or 
services provided by a given function, segment or component unit. Program revenues also 
include grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function, segment or component unit. Taxes and other items not 
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 
Resources that are dedicated internally are reported as general revenues rather than as program 
revenues. The City does not allocate general government (indirect) expenses to other functions. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and 
fiduciary funds. However. the fiduciary funds are not included in the L,overnment-wide 
financial statements. Major individual government funds and major individual enterprise funds 
are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA  
NOTES T() THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Government-lfide Fimmcial Statements — The government-wide financial statements are 
reported usmg the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting. Revemies are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability 
is incurred. regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are 
recopized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have 
been met. 

C:. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 

Governmental Fund Financia! Statements — The governmental fund financial statements 
are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified 
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are hoth mea.surable 
and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities for the current period. For this 
purpose, the City considers revenues to he available if they are collected within 60 days of 
the end of the current fiscal year end. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as 
expenditures related to claims and judgment, are recorded when payment is due. 

Sales taxes, excise taxes, franchise taxes, licenses and investment interest associated with the 
current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and have heen recognized 
as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue iteins are considered to he 
measurable and available only when cash is recen ed by the city. 

Because governmental fund statements are presented using a measurement focus and basis of 
accounting different from that used in the government-wide statement's governmental 
column, a reconciliation is presented that briefly explains the adjustments necessary to 
reconcile ending net position and the change in net position 

In the fund fmancial statement, financial transactions and accounts of the City are organized 
on the basis of funds. The operation of each fund is considered to be an independent fiscal 
and separate accounting entity, with a self-balancing het of accounts recording cash and:or 
other financial resources together with all related liabilities and residual equities or balances, 
and changes therein, which are segregated for the purpose of canying on specific activities or 
attaining certain objectives in accordance with special reeulations, restrictions, or limitations. 

Proprktary Funds and Fiduciary Funds — The financial statements of the proprietary and 
fiduciary funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting, similar to the government-wide statements described above. 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA  
NOTES T() THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 
(contmued) 

Each proprietary fund has the option under Go% ernmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB), Statement 20, Accounting and Financial Repomng firr Proprietary Funds and 
Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting to elect to apply all 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements issued after November 30, 
1989, unless FASB conflicts. with GASB. The City's enterprise fund has elected to not apply 
FASBs issued after the applicahle date. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. 
Revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating re% enues and 
expenses. 

D. Fund Accounting 

The fmancial acti% ities of the City are recorded in individual fund.s. each of which is deemed 
to be a separate accounting entity. The City uses fund accounting to report on its financial 
position and results of operations. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal 
compliance and to aid tinancial management hy segregating transactions related to certain 
government funetions or activities. A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-
balancing set of accounts. 

I. Major Governmental Funds 

General Fund — This fund accounts for all activities of the City not specifically required 
to be accounted for in other funds. Included are transactions for services such as general 
government, health services. public safety, regulatory services and social services. 

1986 Sales Tax 75% Capital Fund — These funds account for monthly transfers from 
sales tax collections 75% of the one cent sales tax passed in 1986. The funds are 
predominately used for capital expenditures. 

. cIRPA Fund — These funds account for federal grants received to help governments in 
the aftermath of the COVID outbreak. The fluids are being used to pay for the salaries 
for public sa fety personnel. 

2022 Debt Capital Fund — These funds account for funds received from the issuance of 
the 2022 bond issuance. The funds are used for capital projects. mostly being the 
construction of the West Monroe Sports Complex. 

2. Special Revenue Funds — These funds are used to account Ibr the proceeds of specific 
revenue sources (other than capital prqjects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for 
specified purposes. 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA  
NOTES T() THE FINANCIAL STATENIENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

I). Fund Accounting (continued) 

3. Debt Service Funds — These funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources 
for. and the payment of, general long-term debt principal. interest and rdated costs. 

4. Capital Projects Funds - These funds are used to account for financial resources to be 
used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities. 

5. Proprietary Funds 

Utiikr Enterprise Fund - This fund is to account for the provision of water and sewerage 
to residents of the City of West Monroe. This fimd is used to account for operations (a) 
that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where 
the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses including depreciation) of 
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or 
recovered primarily through user charges. or (b) where the governing body has decided 
that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, amfor net income is 
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy. management control. accountability or 
other purposes. 

Internal Service Fund — This fund accounts for the financing of services provided by one 
fund to other funds of the City The Self Insurance Fund, which purchases an insurance 
policy and accounts for third-party administrative costs and claims, is reported as an 
internal service fund. 

6. Fiduciary Funds 

Trust Funds — These funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee 
capacity or as an agent for the individuals, private organizations. other governments 
and:or other funds. These include Private-purpose trust funds. Private-purpose trust 
funds are accounted for in essentially the same manner as governmental funds. 

E. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Under state law, the City may deposit funds in demand deposits, interest bearing demand 
deposits, money market accounts, or time deposits with state banks organized under Louisiana 
law and national banks having their principal offices in Louisiana. 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash equivalents include all highly liquid 
investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity date of three months or less when 
purchased. 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA  
NOTES T() THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

F. Investments 

Deposits with original maturity dates exceeding 90 days are classified as investments. 
Investments are reported at fair value. The Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP) is an 
investment pool established as a cooperative endeavor to enable public entities of the State of 
Louisiana to aggregate funds for investment. LAMP operates in accordance with state laws and 
regulations. The reported value of the pool is the same as the fair value of the pool shares. 

G. Noncurrent Receivables 

Noncurrent portions of long-term receivables due to government funds are reported on their 
balance sheets, in spite of their spending measurement focus. Special reporting treatments are 
used to indicate that they should not be considered "available spendable resources" since they 
do not represent net current assets. Recognition of gm ernmental fund tvpe revenues 
represented by noncurrent receivables is deferred until they hecome current receivahles. 

H. Inventories 

Special reporting treatments are applied to governmental fund inventories to indicate that they 
do not represent "available spendable resources", even though they are a component of net 
current assets. Such amounts are presented under the nonspendable fund halance classification. 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. In% entory in the 
General Fund consists of expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as an 
expenditure at the time individual inventory items are used. 

I. Bad Debts 

Uncollectible aniounts for ad valorem taxes and convention center receivables are generally not 
significant. As a result, the direct write-off method for recolunzing bad debts is used. Under 
this method, the receivable is charged to expense when the account is deemed to be 
uncollectible. For customers' utility receivables. the allowance method is used to account for 
uncollectihle amounts. Under this method, an allowance account is set up thr what is deemed 
to he uncollectible. 

J. Short-Term Interfund Receivables/Pa,ahles 

During the course of operation, numerous transactions occur between individual funds thr 
sen ices rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as due from other funds or due 
to other funds on the fund financial statements' balance sheet. In the process of aggegating 
data for the statement of net assets and the statement of activities. some amounts reported as 
interfund activity and balances in the fimds were eliminated or reclassified. Interfund 
receivables and payables were eliminated to minimize the "grossing up" effect on assets and 
liabilities within the governmental acti‘ities column. 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA  
NOTES T() THE FINANCIAL STATEN1ENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

K. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (which is 
normally immovable and of value only to the City, such as roads. bridges. streets and 
sidewalks, drainage systems, hghting systems, and similar items). are reported in the applicahle 
governmental or business-type columns in the government-wide tinancial statements. 
Purchased or constntcted capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost. 
Donated tixed assets are recorded at their fair market value at the date of donation. 

hnfrsstrueture constnicted prior to July 1, 2000, has been recorded at estiniated historical cost. 
The estimated historical cost for years prior to July 1. 2000, was hased on capital outlay 
expenditures reported by the City's engineer who performed a road, street and bridge inventory 
for the City. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the asset's value or 
matenally extend an asset's useful life are not capitalized. 

Capital assets utilized in the governmental funds are recorded as expenditures in the 
governmental fund financial stateinents Depreciation expense is recorded in the government-
wide financial staternents, as well as the proprietary funds financial statements. 

Capital assets of the City are depreciated on the straight-line method over the assets' estimated 
useful life There is no depreciation recorded for land and construction in progress Generally, 
estimated useful lives are as follows: 

Vehicles, Machinery and Equipment 5-20 years 
Buildings and Other Improvements 30-40 years 
Infrastructure 20-40 years 

L. Franchise Agreements 

C)n February 15. 2012, the City Council of West Monroe authorized a franchise agreement 
between the City of West Monroe and Entergy Louisiana for the operation by Entergy 
Louisiana of the electric system within the corporate limits of West Monroe for a period of 
twenty-five years. The agreement provides that Entergy Louisiana will pay to the City three 
percent of gross receipts (as defined) collected from the sale of electric service to residential 
and commercial customers within the City. 

Also. on May 10. 2022, the City Council of West Monroe authonzed a franchise agreement 
between the City of West Monroe and Atmos Energy for the operation of the gas system within 
the corporate limits of West Monroe for a period of ten years. The ageement provides that 
Atmos Energy wiH pay to the City two percent of gross receipts (as detined) collected from the 
sale of gas service to residential and commercial customers within the City. 

C)n April 10, 2012. the City Council of West Monroe authorized a franchise agreement between 
the City of West Monroe and any person or entity desiring to provide cable or ‘ideo services 
that obtains a state issued certificate of franchise authority. The providers will pay to the City 
five percent of gross receipts (as defined) collected from the sale of cable or video service to 
residential and commercial customers within the City and one half of a percent for PEG access 
support. 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA  
NOTES T() THE FINANCIAL STATEN1ENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

M. Lease Obligations 

The City leases various assets tor noncancellable leases of equipment and vehicles. In the 
government-wide financial statements, capital leases and the related lease obligations are 
reported as liahilities in the applicable governmental activities statement of net assets as well as 
recording a related right-of-use lease asset. Leases with an initial value of $5,000 or more and 
&eater than 12 months in length, are recognized. They are evaluated based on the individual 

alue of each asset. 

The lease liability is based on the present value of payments expected to be made dunng the 
lease term. The liability is reduced as payments are made. The right-of-use asset is amortized 
over the useful life on a straight-line basis. 

N. Long-Term Liabilities 

Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are recoenized in the period the bonds 
are issued. Bond proceeds are reported as other financing sources net of the applicable 
premium or discount. Issuance costs, even if withhdd front the actual net proceeds received, 
are reported as deht service expenditures. 

O. Compensated Absences 

Accumulated unpaid vacation, sick pay, and other employee benefit amounts are accrued when 
incurred in enterprise funds under the accnial basis of accounting. Employees of thr City earn 
vacation pay in varying amounts ranging &can 5 to 25 working days per year depending upon 
length of service. At the end of each year. employees may carry forward earned vacation time. 
Up to a maximum of 50 days of unused vacation is paid to an employee upon retirement, 
separation, or death at hourly rates being earned by that employee upon separation. 

Firemen and policemen may receive up to one year's sick leave per illness as prescnbed under 
Louisiana law. For all other City employees. sick leave is accumulated at rates ranging up to 12 
days per year. Unused sick leave may be carried forward, however, up to a maximum of 36 
days of unused sick leave is paid to an employee upon retirement, separation. or death at hourly 
rates being earned by that employee upon separation. 

P. Dedicated Revenues 

Two cents of the sales tax revenue assessment is dedicated as follows: one cent is dedicated to 
capital improvements: seventy-five percent of the remaining cent is dedicated for purchase and 
improvements of assets having a life of one year or greater, related professional services and 
progranis, and for paying capital improvements, construction, and repairs: the remaining 
twenty-fne percent shall he used for general operations. 

An additional one percent sales and occupancy tax was approved for restaurants and hotels 
within the West Monroe Economic Development District in December 2018. The funds will be 
used for economic development within the district. 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA  
NOTES T() THE FINANCIAL STATENIENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Q. Fund Equity 

GASB Statement No. 54 establishes standards for tive fund balance classifications that 
comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to obsene 
constraints imposed upon the use of resources reported in government funds. The non-
spendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are 
either (a) not in spendable form — prepaid items or inventories: or (b) legally or contractually 
required to be maintained intact. 

The spendable portion of the fund balance comprises the remaining four classifications: 
restricted. committed. assigned and unassiEmed. 

Restricted Fund Balance — This classification reflects the constraints imposed on resources 
either (a) externally by creditors, grantors, contributors. or laws or regulations of other 
goveniments: or (b) imposed hy law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Committed Fund Balance — These amounts can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to 
constraints imposed by formal resolutions or ordinances of the city aldermen — the 
government's highest le% el of decision making authonty. Those committed amounts cannot be 
used for any other purpose unless the city aldermen remove the specified use by taking the 
same type of action imposing the commitment. This classification also includes contractual 
ohligations to the extent that existing resources in the fund have heen specifically committed for 
use in satisfving those contractual requirements. 

Assigned Fund Balance — This classification reflects the amounts constrained by the city's 
"intent" to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The city 
aldermen and management have the authonty to assign amounts to be used for specific 
purposes. Assigned fund balances include all remaining amounts (except negative balances) 
that are reported in governmental ffinds, other than the general fund, that are not classified as 
non-spendable and are neither restricted nor comnutted. 

Unassigned Fund Balance — This fund halance is the residual classification for the general 
fund. lt is also used to report negative fund balances in other governmental funds. 

When hoth restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the city's policy to 
use externally restricted resources tirst, then unrestricted resources — committed. assigned and 
unassigned - in order as needed. 

R. Accounting Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make certain estimates and 
assumptions. Those estimates affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of assets and liabilities at thr date of the financial statements. They may also affect 
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses of proprietary funds and the government-wide 
financial statements during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these 
estimates 
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Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

S. Pension Plans 

The City of West Monroe, Louisiana is a participating employer in multiple pension plans as 
described in Note 10 For purposes of measuring the Net Pension Liability, deferred outtlows 
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions. and pension expense, 
information about the fiduciary net position of the Funds, and additions toideductions from the 
Fund's fiduciary net position have been determined on thr same basis as they are reported hy 
the Fund. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are 
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the henetit terms. Investments have been 
reported at fair value within the Plans. 

Note 2- Cash and Cash Equivalents 

cintodial Credit Ri4 - Deposits 

The custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure. the City's deposits may not 
be returned to it. The City's policy to ensure there is no exposure to this risk is to require each 
financial institution to pledge its own securities to cover any amount in excess of Federal 
Depository Insurance Coverage. Louisiana Revised Statute 39.1229 imposes a statutory 
requirement on the custodial bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities within 10 days of 
being notified by the City that the fiscal agent bank has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand. 
Accordingly, the City had no custodial risk related to its deposits at June 30, 2023. 

At June 30, 2023, the City has cash and cash equivalents (book balances net of overdrafts) in the 
amount of $21,575,233 (petty cash of $17.305 not included). 

These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits (or 
the resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of 
securities owned hy the fiscal agent hank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the 
federal deposit insurance must at all times equal thr amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. 

These securities are held in the narne of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial 
hank that is mutually acceptable by both parties. Cash and cash equivalents (bank balances) at 
June 30, 2023, are secured as follows: 

Bank Balances $ 22,931,201 

Federal Deposits Insurance $ 250,000 
Pledged Securities (Uncollateralized) 28,257,735 

TOTAL $ '8,507,735 

Governmental Funds Cash $ 20,054,958 
Enterprise Funds Cash 295,120 
Fiduciary Funds Cash 1,242.460 

TOTAL BOOK BALANCES BY FUND TYPE  $ 21,592,538 
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Note 2- C:ash and Cash Equivalents (continued) 

Discretely Presented Component Units — Deposits 

All deposits of the component units are held by area financial institutions. At the respective year 
ends, all deposits are msured or collaterahzed with securities held in the cornponent unit's name by 
its agent (the trust department of a hank other than the pledging bank). 

Note 3 — Investments 

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments 

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the 
counterparty, the government will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The City had no custodial credit risk 
related to its investments at June 30, 2023. 

Under state law, the City may invest funds in obligations of the United States, in federally-insured 
investments, or in tirne deposits with state banks or.9nized under Louisiana law and national banks 
having their principal offices in Louisiana. At June 30, 2023, the City had the following 
investments stated at cost, which approximates market: 

Fixed Incorne $ 1,378,641 
Louisiana Asset IvIanagement Pool 2,243.490 

Total S 3,622,131  

Interest Rate Risk 

In accordance with its investment policy. the City rnanages its exposure to declines in fair market 
values by limiting investment portfolio to "money market investments", which are defined as 
creditworthy, highly liquid investments with maturities of one year or less. Although there may be 
certain circumstances in which longer-term securities are utilized, the general use of long-term 
securities shall be avoided. 

Credit Risk 

The City's investment policy limits investments to fully insured andOr fully-collateralized 
certificates of deposits and direct and indirect obligations of U.S. government agencies. 

Concenmition of Credit Risk 

The City's investment policy limits the City's investment instruments to: I) certificates of deposit: 
2) certain direct obligations of the U.S. Ciovernrnent: 3) bonds. debentures. notes. or other evidence 
of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by federal agencies and provided such obligations are hacked 
by the full faith and credit of the United States of America: and 4) the Louisiana Asset 
Management Pool. 
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Note 3 — Investrneuts (continued) 

The City participates in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP). The LAMP is an 
investment pool established as a cooperative endeavor to enahle public entities of the State of 
Louisiana to aggregate funds for investment. LAMP is rated AAAm by Standard and Poor's 
rating. 

Note 4 — Fund Deficits 

The following funds had deficits at June 30, 2023. 

Non-Major Funds: 
2003 Debt Service Funds 24.996 
Office of Motor Vehicles 50,218 

Any deficits in the special revenue funds and debt service funds are to be financed with future 
revenues or transfers from other funds. Any deficits in the capital project funds will be funded 
with future drawdowns from state and federal agencies and:or transfers front the general fund. 

Note 5 — Accounts Receivabk 

Accounts receivable at June 30, 2023, consisted of the following: 

Governmental Proprietary 
Funds Funds Total 

Accounts Receivable $ 595,604 S 1,056,184 S 1,651,788 

Note 6 — Ad Valorem Taxes 

Property taxes are usually mailed out in November through Ouachita Parish and are due as of 
January 1. Ouachita Parish remits the City's portion monthly as received from taxpayers. An 
enforceable lien attaches to the property with unpaid taxes and is sold at a tax sale usually in June 
of the following year. 

The Ouachita Parish Tax Assessor estahlishes assessed values each year on a uniform basis at the 
following ratios to fair market value: 

10% Land 
10% Residential Improt, ement 
15% Industrial Improvements 

The ad valorem tax millage is as follows: 

15% Machinery 
15% Comm. Improvements 
25% Puhlic Service Properties, 

Excluding Land 

  

Cieneral Ad Valorem Tax 6.90 
Street Maintenance 1.63 
TOTAL 51 
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Note 7 — I)ue From Other Governments 

amounts due from other governments at June 30. 2023, are as follows: 

City of Monroe, LA 
Corporation for National and Community Service 
HUD 
Ouachita Parish Sheriff 
State of Louisiana 
Various 

$ 2,545,864 
58,271 
12,143 

122.210 

 TOTAL. $ 2,738,488    

Note $ — Capital Assets 

Capital asset actnity for the year 

Government Activities: 
Non-Depreciable Assets: 

ended June 30, 2023, is as follows: 

June 30, )012 June 30, )013 
Balance Additions I)elehuns Balance 

   

Land $ 6,911,403 

 

$ 6,911,403 
Construction In Progress 1 71-1 386 17 131,338 18 845 724 

Total 8,625,789 17,131,338 /5.757,1/7 
Depreciable Assets: 

   

Buildings 32,506,043 402,389 32,908,432 
Improvements 4,769,160 177,763 4,946,923 
Equipment 7,209,012 630,048 7,839,060 
Vehicles 9,536,790 

 

9,536,790 
Infrastructure 82,296,943 1,206,753 83,503,696 

Total at Histoncal Cost $136,317,948 $ 1 ,416,9i3 $ 138,734,901 

Less Accumulated 
Depreciation for: 

    

Buildings $( 19,8(13,584) 5( 1,132,737) 

 

$( 20,936,321) 
Improvements t 1,644,476) ( 112,905) 

 

( 1,757,381) 
Equipment ( 6,615,739) ( 200,258) 

 

( 6,815,997) 
Vehicles ( 8,761,972) ( 253,750) 

 

( 9,015,722) 
Infrastructure ( 60,365,624) 1,547,551) 

 

( 61,913,1751 
Total Accumulated 

Depreciation ( 97,191,395) ( 3,247,201) 

 

100,438,596) 

Gu~ ernment Activities 
S 47.752.342 16.301.090 S S 64,053,432 Capital Assets, Net  
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Note 8 — Capital Assets (continued) 

Business-Type Activities: 
Non-Depreciable Assets: 

Land 
Construction in Progress 

June 

$ 

30, 1012 
Balance Additions Deletions 

June 

$ 

30, 1013 
Balance 

74,150 

 

74,150 

Total 

 

74,15(1 

  

74,15(1 
Depreciable Assets: 

     

Buiklings 

 

73,436 

  

73,436 
Sparta Reuse Plant 

 

20,701,729 

  

20,701,729 
Water Plant 

 

16,140,143 1,132,252 

 

17,272,395 
Treatment Plant 

 

15,841,383 909,177 

 

16,750,560 
Equipment 

 

2,003,006 55,500 

 

2,058,506 
Totals at Historical Cost 

 

54,750,097 2,096,929 

 

50,850,0 7'6 

Less Accuinulated 

     

Depreciation for: 

     

Buildings ( 73,4361 

 

( 73,4361 
Sparta Reuse Plant ( 10,198,610) ( 1,035.187) ( 11.233,7971 
Water Plant ( 8,223,5621 ( 528,8191 ( 8,752,38H 
Treatment Plant ( 11,144,2(17) ( 512,934) ( 11,657,141) 
Equipment ( 1,840,128) 41,929) ( 1,882,057) 

Total Accumulated 
Depreciation 

 

31,479,943) (  2,118,869) 

 

33,598,812) 

Business-Type Activities 
Capital Assets. Net $23,353,904 $ (21,940)  $ 23,331,964  

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2023, was charged 
fdlows• 

Government Activities. 
General Government $ 1,920.,717 
Puhlic Safety 242,321 
Public Works 102,705 
Culture and Recreation 109,014 
Community Development 366,132 
Ike Hamilton Expo Center 489,534 
Convention Center 16,778 
Health and Welfare 

Total Depreciation Expense - 
Governmental Activities $ 3,247,201  

to functions of the City as 

Business-Type Activities. 
Utilities $ 2,118,869 

Note 9 - Restricted Assets and Related Resources 

At June 30, 2023, all restricted assets were in the form of demand deposits. These assets represent 
amounts held for utility customer deposits and cash for reserve and sinking fund requirements. 
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Note 10 - Pension and Retirement Plans 

STATE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 

MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF LOUISIANA 

Substantially all city ernployees. except firemen and policemen are members of the Municipal 
Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (MERS), a multiple-employer tcost-sharing), public 
employee retirement systern (PERS), controlled and administered by a separate board of trustees. 
The MERS is composed of two distinct plans, Plan A and Plan B. with separate assets and benefit 
provisions. Each of these are separated by tirst employment date of which those before January 1, 
2013 are in Plan A and those after in Plan A Tier 2. All members participate in Plan A or Plan A 
Tier 2 based on those dates. 

All perrnanent employees working at least 35 hours per week and elected city officials are required to 
participate in the system. Under the MERS Plan A, a member who retires at or after age 60 with at 
least 10 years of creditable service or at any age with 25 years of creditable service is entitled to a full 
retirement benefit. payable monthly for life, equal to 3 percent of the member's final compensation 
multiplied by his years of creditable service. With MERS Plan A Tier 2, a member who retires at or 
after age 67 with at least 7 years of creditable service, at or afier age 62 with at least 10 years of 
creditable service or at 55 age with 30 years of creditable service are entitled to the same benefits as 
noted with Plan A. 

Final compensation is a member's average monthly earnings during the highest 60 consecutive 
months or joined months if service was interrupted. A member who withdraws from active service 
prior to retirement eligibility is entitled to receive benefits beginning on the normal retirement date, 
assuming completion of the required years of creditable service and no prior refund of 
contributions. The system also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established by 
state statute. 

Funding Policy — State statute requires covered employees to contrihute 9.5 percent of their salaries to 
the System. As provided by Louisiana Revised Statute 11.103, the employer contributions are 
determined by actuanal valuation and are subject to change each year based on the results of the 
valuation for the prior fiscal year. The current actuanally determined rate is 29.5 percent of annual 
covered payroll. The City's contributions to the System under Plan A kir the years ending June 30, 
2023, 2022 and 2021 were $2.230,104, $1,988.838 and $1,876,375. respectively, equal to the required 
contributions fin-  each year. 

The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial staternents and 
required supplementary information for the System. That report rnay be obtained by writing to the 
Municipal Employees' Retirement System, 7937 Office Park Blvd., Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809, 
or by calling (225) 925-4810. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30. 2023. the City reported a liability of $14,637,667 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liahility for the MERS plan. The net pension liahility was measured as of June 30, 2022 
and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined hy an 
actuarial valuation as of that date. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a 
projection of the City's long-term share of contributions to the MERS pension plan rdative to the 
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Note 10 - Pension and Retirement Plans (continued) 

projected contributions of all participating employers., actuarially determined At June 30, 2022, the 
City's proportion was 3.5244n). which was an increase of 0.2420% from its proportion measured as 
of June 30, 2021. 

For the year ended June 30. 2023. the City recognized net pension expense of $2,128.609, net of 
employer's amortization of change in proportionate share and differences between employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions, S2,524. 

At June 30. 2(123, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources. 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 
of Resources of Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience 17.287 (56,051) 

Changes of assumptions 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on

 

141.805 

 

pension plan investments 2,435.646 

 

Changes in proportion and differences between Employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 563.877 (318.(i83) 
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement 
date 2,230.104 

 

Total 5,388.719 S (374.734) 

The City reported a total of $2,230.104 as deferred outtlow of resources related to pension 
contributions made subsequent to the measurement period of June 30. 2022, which will be 
recognized as a reduction in net pemion liability in the year ended June 30, 2023. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to pensions will be recognized as an increase (decrease) in pension expense as follows: 

Year NIERS 

2023 $ 636,229 

1014 746.541 

2025 '33,077 

2026 1.168.036 

S 2.783.883 
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Note 10 - Pension and Retirement Plans (continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions 
A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension liability 
as of June 30, 2022, is as follows: 

June 30, 2022 
Entry Age Normal 

3 years 

(i.85%, net of investment expense; 2.50°;) inflation 

4.5 to 6.4% 

PubG-2010(B) Employee Table set equal to 120'.kb for males 
and females, each adjusted usmg their respective male and 
female MP2018 scales 

PANS-20101B) Disabled Retiree Table set equal to 120q.i. 
for males and females with the full generational MP 2018 
scale 

PubG-2010(B) Healthy Retiree Table set equal to 120% tbr 
males and females, each adjusted using their respective male 
and female MP 2018 scales 

Valuation Date 
Actuarial cost Method 
Actuarial Assumptions: 

Expected Rem ai ning 
Service Lives 

Investment Rate of Return/Inflation 
Rate 

Projected salary increases 

E m ployee mortality 

Disabled lives mortalit. 

Annuitant and beneficiary 
mortality 

Discount Rate 
The long-terni expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the 
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected 
inflation and an adjustment for the effect of rebalancing/diversification. 

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class 
included in the System's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2022, are summarized in the following 
table: 
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Note 10 - Pension and Retirement Plans (continued) 

Long-Terrn Expected 
Portfolio Real Rate of 

Asset Class l arget Allocation Return 

Public Equity 53"f, 2.31% 
Public fixed income 38% 1.65Q0 

Alternative Investments 90 . 0.391) 0 
Total 100% 4.35% 

Inflation 
Expected Arithmetic Nominal Return 6.95"), 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liabilitv was 6.85% for the year ended June 30, 
2022. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions 
from plan members will be made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from 
participating employers will be made at the actuarially determined rates, which are calculated in 
accordance with relei ant statutes and approved by the Board of Trustees and the Public Retirement 
Systems' Actuarial Committee. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net 
position was projected to be In ailable to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan 
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied 
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability 

The effects of certain other changes in the net pension liability are require to he included in pension 
expense over thr current and future periods. The effects on the total pension liability of (1) changes 
of economic and demographic assumptions or of other inputs and (2) differences between expected 
and actual experience are required to be included in pension expense in a systematic and rational 
manlier over a closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all 
employees that are provided with benefits through the pension plan (active and inactive employees). 
determined as of the beginning of the measurement period. The effect on net pension liability of 
differences between the projected earnings on pension plan investments and actual experience with 
regard to those earnings is required to be included in pension expense in a systematic and rational 
manlier over a closed period of five years. beginning with the current period The Expected 
Remaining Service Lives tERSL) for 2022 is 3 years. 

Sensitivity of the Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in 
the Discount Rate 

The following tahle presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability (NPL) using 
the discount rate of each Retirement System as well as what the City's proportionate share of the 
NPL would he if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower or one 
percentage-point higher than the current rate used by each of the Retirement Systems. 

1.01!,3 Decrease  

Current Discount 
Rate  1.0% Increase      

NIERS 
Rates 5 85% 6.85% 7.85% 
COWM Share - NPL $19,470,955 $14,637,667 $10,553,694 
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MUNICIPAL POLICE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

All full-time police officers engaged in law enforcement are required to participate in the Municipal 
Police Employees' Retirement System (MPERS), a multiple-employer (cost-sharing), puhlic 
employee retirement system (PERS), controlled and administered by a separate board of trustees. 
Members who started prior to January 1, 2013, can retire at or after age 55 with 12 years of creditable 
service, at or after age 50 with 20 years of creditable service, or at any age with 25 years of creditable 
service are entitled to a retirement benefit, payahle monthly for life, equal to 3-1'3 percent of the 
member's averaee final compensation multiplied by his years of creditahle service, not to exceed 100 
percent of his average final compensation. 

Average final compensation is the average annual earned compensation of a memher for any period 
of 36 successive or joined months of service that produces the highest average. 

Memhers who started on or after January 1, 2013, retire under one of two plans, Hazardous Duty or 
Non Hazardous Duty. Under Hazardous Duty, at or after age 55 with 12 years of creditable service, 
or at any age with 25 years of creditable service are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly 
for life, equal to 3 percent of the member's average final compensation, not to exceed 100 percent of 
his average final compensation. Under Non Hazardous Duty, at or after age 60 with 10 years of 
creditable service, 25 years of credible service at age 55, or at any age with 30 years of creditable 
service are entitled to a retirement benefit, payahle monthly for life, equal to 2 112 percent of the 
member's average final compensation, not to exceed 100 percent of his average fmal compensation 

For these members, average final compensation is the average annual earned compensation of a 
member for any period of 60 successive or joined months of service that produces the highest 
average. 

The systein also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established hy state statute 

Fundin2 Policy - State statute requires covered employees to contribute 9 75 percent of their salaries 
to the system. The City is required to contribute 31.25 percent of covered employees' salaries. As 
provided by Louisiana Re% ised Statute 11:103, the employer contributions are determined by actuarial 
valuation and are subject to change each year based on the results of the valuation for the prior fiscal 
year 

The City's contributions to the System for the years ending June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021 were 
$1,030.999, $877,070 and $953.144, respectively. equal to the required contnhutions for the year. 

The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary infonnation for the System. That report may be obtained by writinL,  to the 
Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System, 8401 United Plaza Blvd., Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
70809-7017, or hy calling (225) 929-7411. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Influws of Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2023, the City reported a liability of $9,771,486 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability for the MPERS plan. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30. 2022, 
and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an 
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Note 10 - Pension and Retirement Plans (continued) 

actuarial valuation as. of that date. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was. based on a 
projection of the City's long-term share of contributions to the MPERS pension plan relative to the 
projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined At June 30, 2022, the 
City's proportion was 0.9559%. which was an increase of 03171-;. from its proportion measured as 
ofkine 30, 2021. 

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the City recognized pension expense of 51,348.087 net of 
employer's amortization of change in proportionate share and differences hetween employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions, 5324.193. 

At June 30. 2023, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources. 

 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience 48,193 (79141) 
Changes of assumptions 337,062 (72,680) 

Net difference hetween prqjected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments 1.744,518 

 

Changes in proportion and differences hetween Employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 244.443 (799.121) 

Employer contributions suhsequent to the measurement 
date 1,030.099 

 

Total $ 3,405,215 S (951.442) 

The City reported a total of $1.030,999 as deferred outtlow of resources related to pension 
contributions made subsequent to the measurement period of June 30. 2022, which will be 
recognized as a reduction in net pension liabilitv in the year ended June 30. 2023. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to pensions will be recognized as an increase (decrease) in pension expense as follows: 

Year MPERS 
1013 S 199.037 
2024 137,351 
1 015 171 317 
202o 915,00 

 

S1.422.77-1 

Actuarial Assumptions 
A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension liability 
as of.Tune 30. 2022. is as follows: 

-14 



CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA  
NOTES T() THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

Note 10 - Pension and Retirement Plans (continued) 

June 30. /01/ 
Entry Age Normal 

4 years 

6.75%, net of int estment expense. 2.50% inflation 

4.70 to 12.30% based on years of service 

For employees, the Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plan 
Mortality Table for Safety Below-Median Employees 
multiplied by 115% for males and 125% for females, each 
with full generational projection using the M112019 scale 
was used 

For disabled lives, the Pub-201i) Public Retirement Plan 
Mortality Table for Safetv Disable Retirees multiplied by 
105% for males and 115% for females, each with full 
generational projection using the MP2019 scale was used 

For annuitants and beneficiaries. the Pub-2010 Public 
Retirement Plan Mortality Table for Safety Below-Median 
Healthy Retirees multiplied by 115% for males and 125% 
for females. each with HI generational projection using the 
MP2019 scale was used 

Valuation Date 
Actuarial Cost Method 
Actuarial Assumptions: 

Expected Remaining 
Service Lives 

Ins estment Rate or Return/Inflation 
Rate 

Projected salary increases 

I ortalit-y 

The present value of future retirement benefits is based on benefits currently being paid by the 
System and includes previously &anted cost-of-living increases. The present values do not include 
provisions for potential future increases not yet authorized by the Board of Tritstees. 

The mortality rate assumption used was set hased upon an experience study performed by the prior 
actuary on plan data tbr the period July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2019, and the review of similar 
law enforcement mortality. A change was made full generational mortality which combines the use 
of a base mortality table which appropriate mortality improvement scales. In order to set the base 
mortality table, actual plan mortality experience was assigned a credibility weighting and combines 
with a standard table to produce current levels of mortality. 

The best estirnates of the arithmetic nominal rates of return fr.)r each major asset class nicluLkd in the 
system's target allocation as of June 30, 2022, are summarized in the following table: 
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Long-Terrn Expected 
Portfolio Real Rate of 

Asset Class Target Allocation Return 

Equity 55.5U% 3.60° e 

Fixed income 30.51r e u.851) 0 
Alternative hwestments 14.0u1'D U.951>  0 

Other 0.0000 n.on(i0 

Total 10090 5.40- 6 

Inflation 2.660 0 
Expected Arithmetic Nominal Return 8.06°0 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liabihty was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the 
current contribution rates and that contributions from participating employers will be made at the 
actuarially determined rates approved by PRSAC' taking into consideration the recommendation of 
the System's actuary. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was 
projected to he available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. 
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all 
penods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in 
the Discount Rate 

The following table presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability INPL) using 
the discount rate of each Retirement System as well as what the City's proportionate share of the 
NPL would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower or one 
percentage-point higher than the current rate used by each of the Retirement Systems: 

.09 Ikcrease  

Current Discount 
Rate 1.1P '0 Increase      

MPERS 
Rates 5.75% 6.75% 7.75% 
COWM Share- NPL $ 13,678,209 $ 9,771,486 $ 6,508,079 

46 



CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA  
NOTES T() THE FINANCIAL STATENIENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

Note 10 - Pension a nd Retirement Plans (continued) 

FIREFIGHTERS' RETIRENIENT SYSTENI 

All full-time firefighters for the City who are engaged in fire protection are eligible to participate in 
the Firefighters' Retirement System (FRS), a multiple-employer (cost-sharing), puhhc employee 
retirement system (PERS), controlled and administered by a separate hoard of trustees. 

A member who has completed 20 years of creditable service and has reached the age of 50, with at 
least 12 years of service who has reached the aL,e of 55. as well as anvone with 25 years of service at 
any age are eligible I'm retirement. Upon retirement, the benefit amount is 3-1:3 percent of average 
final compensation multiplied by years of creditable sen not to exceed his average final 
compensation. Average final compensation is the member's average annual earned compensation !lir 
any period of 36 successive or joined months of service that produce the highest average. The 
system also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established by state statute. 

Funding Policy  - State statute requires covered employees to contribute 10.00 percent of their 
salaries to the system. The City is required to contribute 33.25 percent of covered employees' 
salaries. As pro% ided by Louisiana Revised Statute 11:103, the employer contributions are 
detertnined bv actuarial valuation and are subject to change each year based on the results of the 
valuation for the prior fiscal year. The City's contribution to the System for the years ending June 30. 
2023, 2022 and 2021 were $712,620. 5642.674. and $613,184, respectively, equal to the required 
contributions for the year. 

The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements 
and required supplementary information for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to 
the Firefighters' Retirement System, 3100 Brentwood Drive, Baton Rouge. Louisiana 70809-1752, 
or by calling (225) 925-4060. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
InfloNs s of Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2023. the City reported a liability of $5,236,487 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability for the FRS plan. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2022 and 
the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of that date. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection 
of the City's long-term share of contnbutions to the FRS pension plan relative to the projected 
contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2022, the City's 
proportion was .7426%, which was a decrease of .0172% from its proportion measured as of June 
30, 2021. 

For the year ended June 30, 2023. the City recognized pension expense of $791.354 net of 
employer's amortization of change in proportionate share and differences between employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions, $43,953. 

At June 30, 2023. the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 

47 



CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA  
NOTES T() THE FINANCIAL STATENIENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

Note 10 - Pension a nd Retirement Plans (continued) 

 

Deferred Outflows 
Deferred 

Inflows of 
Resources of Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience 31,298 $(246.820) 
Changes of assumptions 431.786 

 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments 1,186.202 

 

Changes in proportion and differences between Employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 197,621 (270,365) 

Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement 
date 712.0-4) 

 

Total 2,559,517 $ (517,185) 

The City reported a total of $712,620 as deferred outflow of resources related to pension 
contributions made subsequent to the measurement period of June 30. 2022, which will he recognized 
as a reduction in net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2023 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred intlows of resources related 
to pensions will be recopized as an increase (decrease) in pension expense as follows: 

Year FRS 

2023 $ 275,037 

1014 213.728 

1 01 5 157,909 
'70/6 685,510 

2027 and 

 

thereafter (2.462) 

1.329.722 

Actuarial Assumptions 
A summary of the actuarial methods and assuinptions used in determining the total pension liahility 
as of June 30. 2022. is as follows: 
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Note 10 - Pension and Retirement Plans (continued) 

Valuation Date 
Actuarial Cost Method 
Actuarial Assumptions: 

Expected Remaining 
Service Lives 

Investment Rate of Return 

Inflation Rate 

Projected salary increases 

Mortality 

Cost of Living Adjustments  

June 30, 2022 
Entry Age Normal 

7 years 

6.9%. net of investment expense 

2.50 per annum 

5.2-14.1% per year based on years of service 

For active members, mortality was set equal to the PUB-
2010 Public retirement Plans Mortality  Table for Safety 
Below_Methan Employees 

For annuitants and beneficiaries, mortality was set equal 
to the PUB-2010 Public retirement Plans Mortality 
Table for Safety Below_Median Heathy Retirees 

For disabled retirees. mortality was set equal to the 
PUB-201i) Public retirement Plans Mortality Table for 
Safety Disabled Retirees 

In all cases. the base table was multiplied by 105% for 
males and 115% for females. each with full generational 
projection using the appropriate MP2019 scale. 

Only those previously granted. 

The estimated long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined by the 
System's actuary using the System's target asset allocation. Using the target asset allocation for the 
System and the average values for expected real rates of return. standard deviation of returns and the 
correlation of the returns, an arithmetic expected nominal rate of return and standard deviation for 
the portfolio was determined. 

Asset Class Target Asset Allocation 

Equity 56 00°0 

Fixed Income 26 00°0 

Alternative Investments 18.004 0 

Multi-Asset Strategies n 
Total 1011.0U" o 
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Note 10 - Pension and Retirement Plans (continued) 

Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.9%. The projection of cash tlows 
used to determine the discount rate assumes that contributions from plan members will be made at 
the current contribution rates and that contributions from participating employers will be made at the 
actuarially determined rates approved hy PRSAC taking into consideration the recommendation of 
the System's actuary. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was 
projected to be available to make all prgjected future benefit payments of current plan members. 
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all 
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension I,iahility to Changes in 
the Discount Rate 

The following table presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability (NPL) using 
the discount rate of each Retirement System as well as what the City's proportionate share of the 
NPL would he if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower or one 
percentage-point higher than the current rate used by each of the Retirement Systems. 

1.O'!b Decrease  

Current Discount 
Rate  1.0°0 Incrcase      

FRS 
Rates 5.91!..) 6.9% 7.9% 
COWM Share- NPL $ 7,746,801 $ 5,236,487 $ 3,142,707 

LOUISIANA STATE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

The City Judge is eligible to participate in the Louisiana State Employee& Retirement System 
(LASERS), a multiple-employer (cost-sharing), public employee retirement system (PERS), 
controlled and administered by a separate board of trustees. LASERS provides benefits for certain 
elected officials and officials appointed hy the governor. Eligibility fbr full retirement is based on 
years of credible service and date of which you were first hired. Upon retirement, the benefit 
amount is 2-1/2 percent of average compensation multiplied by the number of years of creditahle 
service. Average compensation is defined as the member's average annual earned compensation for 
the highest thirty-six to sixty consecutive months of employment based on date of hire. 

Judges, court officers. and certain elected officials receive an additional annual retirement benefit 
equal to 1".i. of average compensation multiplied by the number of years of creditable service in their 
respective capacity. The system also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established 
hy state statute. 

Funding Policy - State statute requires covered employees to contribute 11.50 percent of their salaries 
to the system. The City is required to contribute 44.8 percent of covered employees' salaries As 
provided by Louisiana Revised Statute 11.103, the employer contributions are determined by actuarial 
valuation and are subject to change each year based on the results of the valuation fim the prior fiscal 
year. The Citys contribution to the plan for the years ending June 30, 2023, 2022 and 2021 were 
$23,718, $22,184 and $21,039, respectively. equal to the required contributions for the year 
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Note 10 - Pension and Retirement Plans (continued) 

The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements 
and required supplementary information for the System That report may be obtained by writing to 
the Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System, 3401 United Plaza Blvd., Baton Rouge, 
Louisiana 70809, or by calling (225) 922-0600. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Re.ources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Peusions 

At June 30, 2023, the City reported a liability of $185,440 fi-ir its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability for the LASERS plan. The net pension liahility was measured as of June 30, 2022 
and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liabihty was detemiined by an 
actuarial valuation as of that date. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a 
projection of the City's long-term share of contributions to the LASERS pension plan relative to the 
projected contributions of all participatin2 employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2022, the 
City's proportion was .0025%, which was a decrease of .0001% from its proportion measured as of 
June 30, 2021 

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the City recognized pension expense of S24,562 including 
employer's amortization of change in proportionate share and differences hetween employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions. 

At June 30, 2023, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred 
Outflows of Deferred Inflows 
Resources of Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience 506 
Changes of assumptions 3.372 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments 14,937 

Changes in proportion and differences between Employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contnbutions 
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement 
date 23,718 

Total -P.533 

The City reported a total of $23,718 as deferred outflow of resources related to pension contributions 
made subsequent to the measurement period of June 30, 2022, which will be recognized as a 
reduction in net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2023 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to pensions will be recognized as an increase (decrease) in pension expense as follows: 
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Note 10 - Pension and Retirement Plans (continued) 

Year LASERS 
1 0'n S 9.165 

2024 3.086 
2025 13.7771 
106 10.24ll 

$ 18.814 

Actuarial Assumptions 
A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension liability 
as of June 30. 2022, is as follows: 

June 30, )0'2 
Entry Age Normal 

2 years 

7.25%, net of irnestment expense 

Various between 2.(i and 3.6% 

__I:0 per annum 

RP-2014 Blue Collar (malesifemales) and White Collar 
(females) Healthy Annuitant Tables projected on a fully 
generational basis by Mortality Improvement Scale MP-
2018 

RP-2000 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table, with no 
projection for mortality improvement 

Termination, disability, and retirement assumptions were 
projected based on a five-year (2014-2018) experience 
study of the System's members for 2019 

The present value of future retirement benefits is based on 
benefits currently being paid by the System and includes 
pre% iously granted cost of ln ing increases. The projected 
benefit payments do not include provisions tbr potential 
future increases not yet authonzed by the Board of Trustees as 
they were deemed not to be substantively automatic. 

Valuation Date 
Actuarial Cost Method 
Actuarial Assumptions: 

Expected Remaining 
Service Lives 

Investment Rate of Return 

Salary Increases 

Projccted inflation increases 

Mortality 

Termination, Disability and 
Retirement 

Cost of Lhing Adjustments 
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Note 10 - Pension and Retirement Plans (continued) 

The long-terni expected raw of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are devdoped for each major asset class. 
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the 
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected 
inflation of 2.3% and an adjustment for the effect of rebalancing:diversification. The resulting 
expected long-term nominal rate of return is 8.34% for 2022. Best estimates of geometric real rates 
of return for each major asset class Included in the System's target asset allocation as of June 30, 
2022 are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class  

tong-Term Expected 
Portfolio Real Rate of 

Return 
   
Cash n.39.0 
Domestic Equity 4.57°0 

International Equity 5.76° ,) 
Domestic Fixed Income 

International Fixed Income 5.04'1.6 

A I ternat ve Investments 8.30°.6 

Risk Parity 0,000'0 

Total Fund 5.91% 

Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure thr total pension liability was 7.25%. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contrihutions from plan members will be made at the 
current contribution rates and that contnbutions from participating employers will be made at the 
actuarially determined rates approved hy PRSAC taking into consideration the recommendation of 
the System's actuaty. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was 
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. 
Therefore. the long-tenn expecteJ rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all 
periods of projected benefit payments to detennine the total pension liability. 

Sensithity of the Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate 

The following tahle presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability (NPL) using 
the discount rate of each Retirement System as well as what the City's proportionate share of the NPL 
would be if it were calculated usine a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower or one 
percentage-point higher than the current rate used by each of the Retirement Systems: 

Current Discount 
I .01!'() Decrease Rate 1.0% Increase 

LASERS 
Rates 

 

6 25% 7./5% 8.25% 

COWM Share-NPL g /33,338 $ 85.440 $ 141,765 
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Note 11 - Postemployment Health Care and I.ife Insurance Benefits 

General Information about the OPLB Plan 

Plun descrtpuon - The City of West Monroe (the City) provides certain continuing health care and 
life insurance benefits for its retired employees. The City of West Monroe's OPEB Plan (the OPEB 
Plan) is a single-employer defined benefit C)PEB plan administered by the City. The authority to 
establish and:or amend the obligation of the employer, employees and retirees rests with the City. No 
assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in Go‘ernmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB). 

Benefits Provided - Medical insurance benefits are provided through comprehensive plans and are 
made available to employees upon actual retirement. The employees are covered hy one of three 
retirement systems. first, MERS of Louisiana. whose retiremem (D.R.O.P entry) provisions 
are as follows. 25 years of service at any age; or, age 60 and 10 years of service: second. the 
Firefighters' Retirement System of Louisiana, and third. the Municipal Police Retirement System of 
Louisiana. Both the Fire and Police systems have retirement eligibility (D.R.O.P entry) provision as 
follows: 25 years of service at any age. age 50 and 20 years of service; or, age 55 and 12 years of 
service. Employees hired on and after January 1, 2013, must meet the following retirement (D.R.O P 
entry) requirements. age 55 and 30 years of service; age 62 and 10 years of service: or, age 67 and 7 
years of service. Furthermore, there is a minimum requirement of 15 years to receive medical 
benefits. 

Employees covered by benefit terms — At June 30, 2023, the followinE4 ernployees were eoverecl hv 
the benefit terms: 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments 
Acti‘ e employees 

1 56 

Total OPEB Liability 

The City's total C)PEB liability of $4,762,324 was measured as of June 30, 2023, and was determined 
by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 

Actuarial Assumptions and other inputs — The total OPEB liability in the June 30. 2023, actuarial 
valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all 
periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

Inflation 3 0% 
Salary increases 3.0%, including inflation 
Prior Discount rate 3.54% 
Discount rate 3.65%, net of C)PEB plan investment expense. 

inflation 
Healthcare cost trend rates Flat 5.5% annually until 2030, then 4 5% 
Mortality SOA RP-2014 Table 

19 

237 
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Note 11 - Postemployment Health Care and Life Insurance Benefits (continued) 

The discount rate was based on the average of the Bond Buyers' 20 Year General Obligation 
municipal bond index as of June 30. 2023, the end of the applicable measurement period. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30. 2023, valuation were based on the results of ongoing 
evaluations of the assumptions from July 1, 2009 to June 30, 2023. 

Changes in the Total OPEB 

Balance at June 30, /01, $ 4,661,733 

Changes for the year: 

 

Service cost 43.261 
Interest 165,791 

Differences between expected and actual experience 88,819 

Chan2es of assumptions (49,084) 

Benefit payments and net transfers (148.196) 

Net changes 100,591 

Balance at June 30, /013 $ 4,762,324 

sensitivity of the total OPEB hahility to changes in the discount rate — The following presents the 
total OMB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability would he if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (1.65°.4) or 1-percentage-point higher 
(3.65'!.o) than the current discount rate: 

1.0% Decrease Current Discount 1.0% Increase 
(1.65'Vo) Rate (2.65%) (3.65%) 

Total OPER S 5,-) 56.66 S 4.762,324 S 4.333,761 

Sensitivity of the total OP£B liuhilim to changes in the healthcare cosr trend rates — The following 
presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability would he 
if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower (4.5%) or 1-
percentage-point higher (6.5%) than the current healthcare trend rates. 

  

1.0% Decrease 
(4.5%) 

(:urrent Trend 
(5.5%) 

S 4,762,324 

1M% Increase 
(6.5%) 

Total OPEB liability 4,3 -'9,555 :,261,491      

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related 
to OPEB 

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the City recognized OPEB expense of $(239,996). At June 30, 
2023, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred intlows of resources related to 
OPEB from the following sources: 
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Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 
of Resources of Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience 217,019 (3.21(t.768)  
Changes in assumptions 1,119,144 (2.213.228) 
Total S 1,336,163 (5.423.996) 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows. 

Years endilw June 30. 

(449,)48) -) 0 -)3 

2074 (449.048) 
)0)5 (449,048) 
) 016 (449,048) 
20'27 (449.0481 

Thereafter (1,842,593) 

Note 12 - Long-Term Debt 

Governmental Activities. 
Bonds and Notes Payable: 

Certificates of Indebtedness, 

Beginning 
Balance Additions Reductions 

Ending 
Balance 

Amounts Due 
Within 

One Year 

     

Senes '0" 

 

17,000,0th) 180,000 16,820,000 495,000 
Series 2015 18,460,000 

 

1,145,000 17,315,000 1,185,000 
Series 2018 10.075.000 

 

420,000 9,655,000 440,000 
Block Grant for 

     

Economic Development 103,(i81 

 

24,996 78,685 25,000 

Total Gosernmental Bonds 
28,638,681 17.0110.000 1.769.996 43,868.685 2,145,000 And Notes Payable 

Other Liabihties: 

     

Accnied Heart and 

     

Lung Disability 148,098 

 

10.204 137,894 18,633 
Accrued Vacatmn, Sick 

And Compensatory Time 914.671 

 

50,789 863,88/ 863.882 

Total Other Liabilities 1,062,769 

 

60.993 1.0(11.776 882.515 

Total Governmental Activities 

     

Lom2-Tenn Debt $29,701,450 

 

$ 17,000,000 $ 1,830,989 $44,870,461 $3,027,515 
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Note 12 - Long-Term Debt (continued) 

Business-Type Activities: 
Bonds and Notes Payable: 

Certificates of Indebtedness, 

     

Sewer Bonds 2010 $ 654,000 $ $ 63,000 $ 591,00(1 $ 63,000 

Other Liabihnes: 

     

Accrued Vacation, Sick 

     

And Compensatmy Time 
Business-Type Activities 193 154 16,664 

 

209,918 209,918 

Total Business-Type Activities 
$847 254 $ 16,664 $ 63,000 $ 800,918 $ 272,918 Lona.-Term Debt 

Payments on the bonds and notes payable that pertain to the City's 2overnmental activities are made 
by the debt service funds. Funding for these payments are from an irrevocable pledge and dedication 
of the net avails of the City's one percent (1%) sales and use tax approved in 1991 and the thrty-nine 
hundredths of one percent (.49%) sales and use tax approved in 2014. 

The accrued heart and lung disability and accrued vacation, sick and cmnpensatory time will be 
liquidated primarily by the General Fund. Payment of compensated absences is dependent upon 
many factors; therefore, the timing of future payments is not readily determinable. 

Year Ended 
June 30, 

Principal and interest requirements to retire the City's bonds and notes payable obligations are as 
follows: 

Certificates of Indebtechiess 

Principal 
Series 2015 

hnterest 
2024 $ 1,185,000 $ 628,081 
2025 1,225,0(10 567.831 
2026 1,270,000 505.456 
20/7 1.315,000 440,831 
1028 1,360,000 380,756 

2(129-2033 7,555.0(10 1.138.919 
2034-2038 3,405,000 119,091 
2039-2041 

  

Total $ 17,315,000 $ 3,780,965 

  

Certificates of Indebtedness 

 

Year Ended 
June 30, 

Series 2018 Series 2022 
Principal Interest Principal Interest 

2024 $ 440.000 S 420,288 $ 495.000 $ 801.()95 
2025 455,000 397,913 515,000 784,163 
1026 480,000 374,538 530,000 765,213 
2027 500,000 350,038 550.000 744,688 
1018 520,000 324,538 570,000 721,050 

1019-1033 2.920.000 1.207.088 3,305.000 3.142.375 
2034-2038 3.540.000 510594 4,220,0(X) 2.207.000 
2039-2044 80( ).po( 16,000 6.635,000 1,042,375 

Total $ 9,655,000 $ 3,610,997 $16.820,000 $10,207,959 
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CDBG Division Of Adm. Sewer Revenue Bonds 
Economic Development Series 2010 

Principal 

 

Interest Principal Interest 
$ 25.000 $ $ 63,000 S 2.518 

25.000 

 

64.000 I13) 

25.000 

 

64.000 1.944 
3.685 

 

65,000 1.654 

  

(6,000 1,359 

  

269.000 2,437 

$ 78,685  $ $ 591,000 $ 12,1-14 

Year Ended 
June 30, 

2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 

2029-2033 
2034-2038 

Total 

Note 13 - Long-Term Firemen's Disability Payments 

The City of West Monroe is self-insured with respect to workers' compensation claims up to 
$250.000 per occurrence. Consequently, the City is responsihle for providing Louisiana State 
Workers Compensation benefits under the Heart and Lung Act. Under this act, special treatment 
has been accorded firemen who develop any disease or infirmity of the heart and lungs. Louisiana 
Revised Statute 33.2581 provides a presumption in favor of firemen that the disease is related to 
employment even if they are not on duty when stricken with the thsease, if the disease manifests 
itself after the first five years of employment. At June 30. 2023, the City is responsible for 
payment of lifetime benefits to two tiremen or their spouses. The actuarial estimate of the liabilitv 
is $137.894. 

The annual payment requirements outstanding at June 30, 2023, are as follows: 

2024 S 18.633 
2025 18,633 
)016 18,633 
2027 18,633 
2028 18,633 

2029-2033 44,729 
2034-2036 

 

TOTAL $ 137,894 

Note 14 - Municipal Facilities Revolving Loau Fund 

On November 1, 2009, the City entered into a commitment agreement with the Louisiana 
Department of Environmental Quality for two capitalization grants totaling $6,000,000 to be used 
for the purpose of establishing a water pollution control revolving fund for providing assistance to 
upgrade the City's existing treatment plant hy installing additional components that would allow the 
plant effluent to he used by Graphic Packaging as process water. These components are not required 
for the City to inert its permits but are needed solely to allow for the beneficial use of the plant 
effluent. The existing lagoons are retained to provide secondary treatnient hefore entering the new 
units. Ettluent from the plant is being pumped to Graphic Packaging through a pipeline that has 
been constructed for that purpose. 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA  
NOTES T() THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

Note 14 - Municipal Facilities Revolving Loan Fund (continued) 

Sew er Revenue Bonds 

Sewer rei, enue bonds were issued in the amount of $1,250,000 to help fund the above project. This 
amount will be paid back over a twenty year amortization period at .45% and is also recognized as 
bonds payable. Sewer Revenue Bonds of 54,750,000 were also issued but were forgiven during the 
year ending June 30. 2013. See note 12 for the principal and interest requirements. 

Note 15 - Leased Assets 

I)uring the year ending June 30, 2022. the City entered into a lease agreement with Enterpnse to 
provide the City's fleet of vehicles. Over the next several years, Enterprise will be replacine all of 
the City's ‘ehicles. The vehicles will then be rotated out every few years along the Name time frame. 
Lease terms vary from 4 to 5 years with varying interest rates per vehicle between 4A8 and 8.51 
percent as of June 30, 2023. As of June 30, 2023, the City has received 61 vehicles The following 
is a schedule hy years of future minimum lease payments: 

Year Ended 
June 30, Princi )al Interest 

2024 $ 380,807 85,617 
10,5 380,807 85,617 
10)6 312,81)6 75,198 
2027 204,004 47,612 
)018 81,602 27,288 

As of June 30, 2023, the leased assets were x'alued at 51,690,121 with accurnulated amortization of 
5263,156. 

Note 16 - Cooperative Endeavor — Sports Complex 

The City and the Monroe-West Monroe Convention and Visitor's Bureau of Ouachita Parish entered 
into a Cooperative Agreement in regards to the construction of the West Monroe Sports and Events 
Complex. The Bureau is contributing to the construction of the facility, and in return. the City and 
the Bureau will work together to allow the Bureau to schedule e‘ents at the Complex through 2039. 

Note 17 - Litigation 

There are several pending lawsuits in which the City is involved. The City Attorney is unaware of 
any pending litigation from which he would reasonably expect the City to incur a liability in excess 
of its applicahle deductible on any insurance policy and is further unaware of any litigation where the 
City may not be insured as to any claim where he would reasonably expect the City to incur a 
liability in excess of $100,000. 

Note 18 - Self-Insurance Program 

During 1998. the City began a self-insurance program for hospitalization and medical co‘erage for 
its active employees and retirees. The City limits its losses through the use of reinsurers up to 
575,000 per employee. The City's aggregate annual loss limitation is based on a formula that 
considers, among other things. the total nurnber of employees. At June 30, 2023. the City's annual 
cost, excluding reinsurance premiums, is limited to approxirnately 53,000,000, which was for active 
ernployees. Approximately 32 retirees recen e benefits under this plan. These retirees reimbursed 
the City for 5243.278 during the vear ended June 30, 2023, for their cost of the health care benefits. 
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Note 19 - Deferred Compensation Plan 

Employees of the City may participate in a deferred compensation plan adopted under the 
provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 457 (Deferred Compensation Plans with Respect to 
Service for State and Local Governments). The deferred compensation plan is available to all full 
time employees of the City. Under the plan, employees may elect to defer a portion of their 
salaries and avoid paying taxes on the deferred portion until the withdrawal date. The deferred 
compensation amount is not available for withdrawal by employees until termination. retirement, 
death or unforeseeable emergency. 

Since the assets of the plans are held in a custodial account with a third party administrator, the 
assets and liabilities are not presented in the City's financial statements in accordance with GASB 
32. Assets with a fair market ‘alue of $1.598,602 are held by Nationwide Retirement Solutions, 
Inc. and VALIC Financial Advisors. 

Note 20 - Interfund Operating Transfers In and 

Interfund opzrating transfers in and out 

Fund 

Out 

during the year ended 

In 

June 30. 2023, were as follows: 

Operming Transferi;
ut

 

Major Funds: 

 

General Fund ¶ 2,262,933 $ 5,957,883 
'86 Sales Tax Capital 4,541,298 858,191 
ARPA 

 

2,262,934 
Enterprise Fund 461,954 

 

Non-Major Funds: 

  

Special Revenue Funds 555,277 978,011 
Capital Project Funds 

  

Internal Service Fund 120,731 

 

Fiduciary Funds 278,624 

 

Deht Service Funds 1,836,202 

 

TOTAL $ 10,057,019 $ 10,057,019 

Transfers are used to (a) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them 
to the fUnd that statute or budget requires to expend them and (b) use unrestricted re% enues 
collected in the general fund to finance arious programs accounted for in other funds in accordance 
with budgetary authorizations. 
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NOTES T() THE FINANCIAL STATENIENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

Note 21 - Interfund Receivables and Payables 

Intertlind balances at June 30, 2023, were as follows: 

Fund Receivables 
Interfund 

Payables 
Major Funds: 

  

General Fund $ 820,266 ¶ 135,541 
'86 Sales Tax 165.541 645.765 
2022 Debt Capital 1,506 

 

Enterprise Fund 

 

157.340 
Non-Major Funds: 

  

Special Revenue Fund.s 465,962 589,386 
Deht Service Funds 

 

39,645 
Capital Project Fund 

 

30,000 
Fiduciary Funds 148,627 2,000 
Internal Service Fund 

 

.7.'15 

TOTAL $ 1,601,902 1,601,902 

These balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that interfund goods and services are 
provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, transactions are recorded in the accounting system 
and payments between funds are made. 

Note 22 - On-Behalf Payments 

Certain City employees in the City Marshal's office, the West Monroe Police and Fire departments 
receive supplemental pay from the state of Louisiana. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 24. 
the City has recorded revenues and expenditures for these payments in the General Fund. Revenues 
under this arrangement totaled $682,153 and the related expenditures are as follows: 

Marshal's Office $ 21,715 
Police Department 376,361 
("ode Enforcement 7,238 
Fire Department 257 284 

Total ¶ 662.599 

Note 23 - Minimum Lease Pay ments Receivable — Direct Financing Lease 

On September 29. 2006. the City purchased a building for $1,250,000 and renovated it tbr an 
additional $165,(>00 with the intent of leasing it as a commercial building with an option to 
purchase. The company that leased the building created 50 new jobs at the facility. In addition to 
this arrangement, the City was awarded a community elopment block grant for $500,000 
(510,000 for each job created). This $500,000 was added to the $915,000 in bond issuances that 
were secured during fiscal year 2006 to pay for the building for a total $1,415,000. 

The following lists the components of the minimum lease payments to be received under the direct 
financin2 lease as ofJune 30, 2023: 
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Note 23 - Minimum Lease Payments Receivable — Direct Financing Lease (continued) 

Total minimum lease payments to be received S 81.315 
Less: Amounts representing estimated executory costs 

(such as taxes, maintenance, and insurance), including 
profit thereon. included in total minimum lease payments 

Minimum lease payments receivable 81,315 
Estimated residual values of leased property (unguaranteed) 
Less: Unearned Income 
NET MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS RECEIVABLE - 

DIRECT FINANCING LEASE $ 81,315 

Future minimum lease payments are as follows: 
Year Ended 

June 30 Amount 
7014 $ 25,020 
10'5 25.020 
2026 15,010 
2027 6,255 
1018 

2019-1037 
Total $ ti 1,3 1 5 

Note 24 - Component Units 

For the year ending June 30. 2023, the City has chosen to include its legally separate components 
units discretely in the City's fmancial statement in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States. 

Note 25 - Subsequent Events 

Note 26 - 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through December 8. 2023, the date that the fmancial 
statements were available to he issued. A11 subsequent events determined to be relevant and 
material to the financial staternents have been appropnately disclosed or recorded. 

Fund Changes and Fund Balances 

Amounts for specific purposes by fund and fund balance classifications for the year ended June 30, 
2023, are as follows: 

ClassificationFund Purpose Amount 
Nonspendable: 

General Fund Inventory $ '3.5'9 
Minimum Lease Payment Receivable 81,315 

o2 



CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA  
NOTES T() THE FINANCIAL STATEN1ENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

Note 26 - Fund Changes and Fund Balances (continued) 

Restricted. 
ARPA 
2022 Deht Capital Capital Expenditures 
Section 8 Public Housing 
Metro LCLE LCLE Multi-Jurisdictional Taskforce 
Emergency Shelter FEMA Emergency Shelter Recipients 
Arnericorps 
Economic Dev. District 
Officer Witness Court 
Various Cap. Projects Various Cap. Projects 

Committed. 
General Fund Fund Balance for Next Year's Operations 

Assigned: 
General-Project Contingency 
Misc. Grants 
Capital Campaign 
Ouachita C)utreach 
86 Sales Tax Capital 
2011 Deht Service 
2015 Deht Service 
2018 Debt Service 
2022 Debt Service 

Unassigned: 
General Fund 
Office of Motor Vehicles DMV Operations 
2003 Debt Service 

Total Fund Balances 

2,30(1,618 
7,098,053 

190,515 
2.614 
6,889 

62,958 
770,135 
34,616 

262,i193 

3,500,000 
13.619 

395,188 
8,349 

1,536,098 
5,278 

857.850 
355,884 
94.019 

8,412,407 
( 50,218i 
( 24.996) 
$25,936,813  
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA  
BUDGETARY CONIPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENI)ED JUNE 30, 2023  

Revenues 

Budyted Amount,. 

Variance With 
Final Budget 

Actual Favorable 
Amuunts Jnfavorable) h-igin31 Final 

   

Taxes S 18,492,650 S 20.996.957 S 20,996.957 
Intereovernmental 463.715 393,347 393.347 
Licenses and Permits 1,063,650 1.108.390 1,108,390 

Charges for Services 2.345,500 2.848,320 2.848,320 
Fines and Forfeitures 214,300 277,763 277,763 
Interest Earned 35,000 108,075 108,075 
Franchise Revenue 812,000 1,092,697 1,091,697 
Sale of Assets 500,000 5115,1)70 505,070 

Other 45,250 357.1S2 357,182 

Total Re% roues 23.971.565 27.687,801 27.687.801 

Ex enditures 

   

General Government: 

   

Elected Council 85.776 86,832 86.832 
City Court 608,230 6B368 613,168 
Marshal 55?,5?3 572,84/ 572,842 
Mayor's Office 335,530 499,505 499,505 

City Clerk's Office 1,050,394 954,717 954,717 
Information Technology 424,225 309,627 3119,617 
City Hall Maintenance 818,043 751,559 751,559 

General and Administrative 2.353.187 2.609,549 2.609.549 
Public Safety. 

   

Legal 652.704 540,279 540.279 

Fire 3,256,100 3.397.501 3,397,501 
Police 6,020.880 6,117,281 6,117.281 
Prison 
Police Shop 

Public Works: 

   

Garhage 766,464 890,736 890,736 
Trash 874,880 729,411 729,411 
Streets 930,515 1,069,680 1,1169.680 
Cemetery 3,1)00 2,894 2,894 

Planning and Zoning 83,807 83A81 83,481 
Inspection '87.58') 277,471 277.471 
Citv Maintenance Shop 449,036 441.328 441,328 



CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA  
BUDGETARY CONIPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENI)ED JUNE 30, 2023  

Culture and Recreation. 

Budyted Amounts Actual 
Amuunts 

Variance With 
Final Budget 

Favorable 
(I Jnfavorable) )rigin31 Fula] 

    

Recreation and Parks 462.670 473.161 473_161 

 

Kiroli Park 687.500 720.676 720.676 

 

Lazarre Park 5.500 5M21 5,01 1 

 

Reskiration Park 7,000 7,378 7,378 

 

Farmer's Market 50,779 49,508 49,508 

 

Ike Hamilton Expo Center 1.239,792 1.574,349 1.574,349 

 

Convention Center 459,911 482,315 482.315 

 

Community Development & Center 292,994 333.733 333.733 

 

Tanner Building & Business Center 17.560 19,562 19.562 

 

Sectum 8 Housing 230,685 - - 

 

Code Enforcement 277.120 258,788 ':', . -.7 S 

 

Tutal Expenditures 23.284,4(17 '3.87' 35/ 

  

F.xcess of Revenues Over (l'uder) 
687.158 3,815.449 3,815.449 

 

Expenditures 

Other Fiumicino SOLIITC1 and (1"ses1 

    

Transfers In 250,000 2.262,933 2.262,933 

 

Transfers Chit (589,875) (5,957.883) (5,957,883) 

 

Total Other Financing Sources 
and Uses (339.875) O,694.950) (3,694.950) 

 

Net Change in Fund Balance 347,283 120.499 120,499 

 

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 11,896.752 11.896.752 11,896.752 

 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR  S 12.244,035 S 12.017.251 S 12.017,251 S 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA  
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - '86 SALES TAX 75% CAPITAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

Revenues 

Budgeted Amounts Actual 
Amounts 

Variance With 
Final Budget 

Favorable 
(Unfavorable) Original Final 

    

Sales Tax $ 6.500,000 $ 7.030.513 S 7.030.513 S 
Intergovernmental 6,955.039 4,299.583 4,199,583 

 

Charges for Services 

    

Sales of Asset 

    

Other 

 

17.750 17,750 

 

Interest Income 5(10 6 l 1 611 

 

Total Res enues 11.45; 11.348,457 11.348.457 

 

Ex enditures 

    

Salaries. Wages and Benefits 305,935 305,990 305.990 

 

Professional Services 630,000 850.865 850,865 

 

Repairs and Maintenance 940,000 1,894,104 1.894,104 

 

Capital Purchases 10.394,800 10.628.138 10.628.138 

 

Miscellanous 2.190 750 750 

 

Total ExpenditureN 12.272.925 13,679.847 13,679,847 

 

Excess of Revenues Over 
1.182.614 (2.331.390) (2,331,3901 

 

Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources and (Uses) 

    

Transfers In 

 

4,541.298 4,541,298 

 

Transfers Out (858,190) (858.191) (858.191) 

 

Total Other Financing Sources 
and Uses (858,190) 3,683,107 3,683,107 

 

Net Change in Fund Balance 324.424 1.351,717 1,351,717 

 

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 552,462 184,381 184.381 

 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR  $ 876,886 $ 1.536,098 S 1.536.098 $ 

The accompanying notes are im integral pint of this financial statement. 
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CITY OF NVEST MONROE, LOUISIANA  
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - APRA FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

Revenues 

Budgeted Amounts Actual 
Amounts 

Variance With 
Final Budget 

Favorahle 
(Unfavorable) Original Final 

   

Intereovernmental S 2.161,09' S 2.261.092 $ 
Other 

   

Interest Income 37.684 37,684 

 

Total Revenues 2.298.776 2.298.776 

 

Expenditures 

   

Public Safety 

   

Total Expenditures 

   

Excess of Revenues Over 

2.298,776 2,298.776 

 

Expenditures 

Oilier Financing Sources and (Uses) 

(2.262,934) (2,262.934) 

 

fransfers In 
Transfers Out 

Total ()ther Financing Sources 
and Uses (2.262.934) 12,262,9341 

 

Net Change in Fund Balance 35,842 35..84." 

 

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 2.264.776 2,264.776 

 

FUND BALANCE AT ENI) OF YEAR  S 2.300.618 S 2.300.618 $ 

The accompanying notes are an integral pint of this financial statement. 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA  
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - 2022 DEBT CAPITAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

Revenues 

Budeeted Amounts 

Variance With 
Final Budget 

Actual Favorable 
Arnotuits (Unfavorahle) Original Final 

  

Sales Tax 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for Services 
Sales of Asset 
Other 3.605,421 3,605.421 
Interest Income 19.998 19,998 

Total Revenues 3.625,419 3,625.419 

Expenditures 

  

Salaries. Wages and Benefits 
Professional Services 
Repairs and Maintenance 

  

Capital Purchases 14.6211,294 14,6211.294 
Miscellanous 

Total Expenditures 

  

14.6211,294 14,6211.294 

Excess of Revenues Over 
(10,994.875) (10.994.875) Expenditures 

Other Financina Sources and (Uses) 

  

General Obligation Bonds 18.092,9414 18,092.904 
Transters In 
Transfers Ctut 

  

Total Other Financing Sources 
and Uses 18.092,9114 18,092.904 

Net Charm. in Fund Balance 7.098,0/9 7,098.029 

Fund Balance at Bednning of \ ear 

 

24 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 7,098,053 S 7.008.053 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this thlanclal statement 



CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOI1ISI.ANA  
NOTES TO BUDGETARY' COMPARISON SCHEDULES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

The City tbllows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in these financial 
statements. 

1. In May of each year. the Mayor submits to the Board of Aldermen an operating and capital 
budget for the succeeding year. 

A public heanng is scheduled by the Mayor and the Board of Aldermen after allowing for at 
least ten days notice to the public at the time the hudget is initially submitted to the Board of 
Al dermen. 

3. Final adoption of the budget by the Board of Aldermen is on the second Tuesday in June. 

4. The Mayor may authorize transfers of budgetary arnounts within departments. However, any 
revision requiring alteration of levels of expenditures or transfers between departments must 
be approved by the Board of Aldermen. 

5 Operating appropriations and nonmajor capital appropriations, to the extent not expended, 
lapse at year-end. Major capital appropriations continue in force until the project is 
completed 

All legally adopted hudgets of the City are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). Budgets are adopted for 
the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds, Capital Project Funds, and 
Expendahle Trust Funds. 

Budget comparison schedules included in the accompanying financial statements include the 
original adopted budgets and all subsequent adopted amendments. 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISI  ANA 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES LN NET OPEB LIABILIT1 AND LATED RATIOS 

20, 3 

 

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 
Total OPEB Liability 

      

Service Cost $ 297,127 $ 345,716 ¶ 545,637 S 423.381 s 427.786 S 43,261 
Interest "83.557 "89.776 "95,308 208,764 220,269 165,791 
Changes in benefit terms 

   

- - 

 

Difference between expected and 
actual experience 167,657 24,227 (840,440) 167.086 (3,362,419) 88,819 

Changes in Assumptions (254.289) 410.517 1,192,909 79.957 (2.467.157) (49,084) 
Benetit Payments (209,073) (22(►,572) (123,3271 ( 130.110) (140.470) (148,196) 
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability 784,979 849,664 1,1)7(1,087 /49.078 O.321.991) 100,591 

Total OPEB liability - beginning 7,029,915 7.314,894 .164,55N 9,234.64) 9,983,7 74 4.661,733 

Total OPEB - ending (a) $ 7.314.894 $ `,.164.558 S 9.'34.645 $ 9.983,7/4 $ 4.661,733 4,762.324 

Covered Employee Payroll $ 9,088,183 S 9,360.828 ¶ 9,435,788 $ 9.718,862 S,617.953 S 8,876,492 

Net OPEB habihty as a percentage of 
covered employee payroll 80.49% 87.22% 97.87% 102.73% 54 0fP0 53.65% 

Notes to Schedule: 

Benefit Changes: 

Changes in .-Issumption: 

Discount Rate: 

Mortality: 

Trend. 

None None None 

3.87% 3.501!O 7.' 

RP-2000 RP-2000 

5.50% 5.50% 

None 

-2.16% 

RP-2014 

Variable 

None 

3.54 

RP-2014 

Variable 

None 

3.65 

RP-2014 

Variable 

This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA  
F.ST MONROE, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LLABILITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

MERS 

year Ending June 30, 
2015 
2016 

Employers Propiwthin 
of the Net Pension 

(AN:4-0 
3 29401.0 
3 3204% 

Employers 
Proportionate Shale 
of the Net Pension 
Liabtlity (A.se0 

8.453.M63 
11.860.921 

Covered 
Employee Payroll 

5.667.08S 
6.066.150 

Empkiyers Pnipornoimie 
Share of the Net Pension 

Liability (Asset) 4s 4 
Percentage of us 

149 17% 
195.53% 

Plan Fidimary Nel 
PaNili00 as a Percentage 

nf the Total Peniion 
Liability 
73 9900 
66 18°.. 

2017 34156% 14 ti39,990 6 183.127 227 07°. 62 11% 
2018 3 5568% 14 8-'9 694 4 542.072 327 60% 63 49% 
2019 3 6270°0 15.018.184 6.004.446 250.12°0 65 60°.0 
2020 3 5039°.0 14.641.645 6.141.697 238 40% 64 (IR'. 
2021 3 5312°. 15 266,856 6.360.592 240.02.0 64 52% 
2022 3 2824°0 9.129.M6s 6.741.X24 135.42% '9 1-1°. 
2023 3 5244% 14 637 667 5594..76 193 63% 67 87% 

MPERS 

Year Ending lune 30, 

Employees Proportion 
of the Net Pensian 
Liability tAsseo 

Employees 
Pit Iponionate Share 
ot the Net Pension 
Liability (Asset) 

Employer's 
Covered 

Einp14yee Pay1141 

Einployer's Proportionate 
Share of thc Net Pension 

Liabihty (Asset) as a 
Pmentage of its Covered-

 

Employee Payroll 

Plan Fiduciary Net 
Posinan a.: a Percentage 

of the Total Pension 

2015 1 1694% 7.315.950 3.115.534 234 M2% 75 10°0 
2016 1 ir 39°0 8.413.119 3.140.207 26- .92°0 -0 73°.0 
2017 1 1256% 10 549.125 3 224.985 327 11% 66 04°0 

201s 1 0824°.0 9.430.146 l 3.247.734 290 38% 70 08°. 
2019 1 11157% 9 347.250 3.286.77' 284.39% 71 89°. 
2020 1 087it% 9 814.357 3 434.923 285 72% 71 01°0 
2021 1 1121% 10.278.25-

 

2.824.130 363 94% 71)94% 
2022 0 9242°. 4.926.438 2 948.134 167.100; 84 09% 
2023 o 9559°.0 9.-71.486 3.299.196 296 18% 71114114. 

71m schedule A to be built prospective& Odd ofiill 10-year treed a compiled. die schedule will shun mliormation for those tem-A4w which data 
available. beguatuig ith F}£ AM` 3u. 2015 

The amounts presented have a ineasuremcnt dale of the previous fiscal ycar end 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA  

WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA  

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NE T PENSION LIABILITY trout.) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

FRS 

Year Ending June 30, 
2015 
2016 
2U1' 

2018 
2019 
2020 

2u21 
2022 

2023 

Employees Proportion 
of the Net Pension 
Laltihly (Assrt1 

tf 7%15% 
n S044°D 

8332° 

0 8019% 
n 7318% 

ls 704 l°0 
n 7439% 

7598°. 

0 "427'08 

Employees 
Pioportionair Share of 

the Net Pension 
Liabibly 

3.344.235 
-4 341.275 
5,499 705 

-4 590 186 
-4 209.123 
4.409.092 

5 19\595 
2 692 o61 

5.236.487 

Employee% Covered 
Employee Payroll 

1.7O.438 
I.875 777 

1.871,321 

1.740 887 
1.705 324 
1.851.380 

1.901 345 
1.910 800 

2.143.218  

Eluployer Ploporliunate 
Share of the Net Pension 

Laebilih (Asset) as a 
Percentage nf its Covered-

 

ElliploYec Payroll 

195 63% 
231 44% 
293 80% 

264 01% 

246  52.°4 

238 l 

271 21% 
140 924 s 

244 3.Vit 

Plau Fidui.iary Nri 
Positon as a 

Pricrut.lge of the 
Tutal Pension 

LsaLilUv 

76 02% 
72 45°. 

68 16% 

7 3 55% 
74 76% 
73 9O4 
72 6 I% 
86 78°. 

74 680. 

LASERS 

Year Ending June JO, 

2015 

2016 
2017 

2018 
2U19 
2020 
2021 

2022 
2023 

Einployer's Ptoponiun 
of the Net Pension 
1 iabihty (AsNett 

0 0024°0 

(1024°0 
0 0024°D 
It l)024°i, 
0 0024°4 
0 00231D 
n ri02O0 
ll i)0250i 

Employe.; 
Pioportionale Share of 

Me NO Pension 
Liahilily 

l4I.003 

151.578 
187 126 

171.959 
16.4 746 
1 72.067 

189.481 

142.o08 
185 440 

Employees Cm ed 
Employee Payroll 

44.812 

45 720 
46 614 

47.51A 
48,52A 
51.‘41 
49.504 

50 924 
¶2,,o42  

Einployei's Proportionate 
Share of the Net Pension 

Lialnlit) (Asset) as a 
Peicentage nf Coveled-

 

Eimiksyer Payroll 

314 tis% 
331 loos 

401 444 s 

361 90% 
337 44% 
333 84% 
t82 7Ma 

280 
35o 17% 

Plaii Fulmiary Net 
Positron as a 

Percentage of tbr 
Tolal Pension 

Ltabshty 

u5 0"4 

62 70% 

57 70°. 

02 SM. 

64 30°. 
62 90°. 

55 00°4 

72 F-0°. 

63 7tro 

Ms schedule is tu be Inuit prospecurelt OW la-rear trod r1 compded, the tchedule It tit thou In/kimono:, fOr Muse trdrs for milk!, data AT ~kW 
&gaming ma; FTE June 30. 

• The annaluts presenird ha% r a thra..urement date of die previous fiscal year end 



CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISLANA  

WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA  
SCHEDULE OF THE EMPLOYER'S PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2u23  

NIERS 

( 011il It/1111OM III C onta,utton,  
Relation to Exmployers ao'o ol 

Contractually (: ontactually Coveret I Covered 
Required Requited Contnbution Employee Employee 

Year Endinit June 30. CLiumbution Contnbution Deficiency Excess) Payroll Payroll 
2015 1.119.25u 1.119.250 - 5 667,upg 19.75% 

2016 1.201.843 l :101.843 6.066.150 19.81% 
2017 1.406,663 1.406.663 6,1/13 127 22.75% 

2018 1.593.641 1.593.641 6.473.855 24.G'1% 
2019 1.561,156 1.561.156 6 004 446 26.,10% 
21120 1.704.321 1,704.321 6.141.697 27.'5% 
2021 1.876.374 1.876.175 6 360.592 20.50% 

2022 1.988.838 1.988.838 6.741.824 '9.50% 

2023 2.230.10-1 2.230.104 7.559.676 29.50% 

   

MPERS 

   

Contnbutums in 
Relaiii 91 tu 

 

Exinployer's 
ConInbutitms 

as % uf 

 

Contractually Coulradually 

 

Covered Covered 

 

Required Reqiiired ConItillutiott Employer Et nployee 
Yeal Ending June 30, Contribution Contribution DefiiicncyfEtaxs.o Payroll Payroll 

2015 9KI.393 981.393 - 3.115.534 31.50% 
2016 930.067 930.067 

 

3 140.207 29.62% 
2017 1.027.768 1.02- .768 

 

3.224.985 31.87% 
2018 1.000 363 1.000.363 

 

3 24' 73-1 30.80% 
2019 1.088.725 1.088.725 

 

3.286.7-7 33.12% 
2020 1.116_350 1.116.350 

 

3 434 921 32.50% 
2021 953.144 953.144 

 

2.824.130 33.'5% 
Nil' 87'.07t I 877.0:0 

 

2 948.134 79.75% 

2023 1.030.999 1.030.999 

 

3.'99.196 31.25% 

This schedule is to be build prospect:sell. Until old! 10-t ear trend is compiled. the .schedule will shot, mformation for those rears for it hich data 
a‘siihible. beginning urth FIE June 30. :015 

For referent', olds: 

I  Emploer contribution rote multiplied lw employer's covered empktee pored! 

Actuol emplaser contribution remitted to the repectne peimon Ands 

Ern/diner's roversel onplusse patrol! annuity for the fits-al s stir ended 



CITY OF WEST NIONROE. LOUISIANA  

WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA  

SCHEDULE OF THE EMPLOYER'S PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED .1-UNE 30, 2023  

   

FRS 

   

Coutnbutious in 
Relation tu 

  

Coutnbutious 
.I.S 60 ilf 

 

Contractually Contractually 

 

Exmployer's Covered 

 

Reqiiired Required Contribution t'ovcred Employee 
Year Endang NM 30. Coniribution Contribmion Delii.teuc yi Execs..) Ellipluyee Pdyroll Payroll 

2015 500.011 5410.011 

 

I .709.438 '9 25% 
2016 clu.u63 510.0A3 

 

1,875.777 27.19°0 
2017 4- 2.509 472.509 

 

1 871 121 25.25% 

2015 461.682 461.652 

 

1 7-16.S87 26.5,5. 

2019 451.911 451.911 

 

1.7O5 42-1 26 5040 
202u 513.- 58 51.3.158 

 

1.851.380 27.75% 

2021 ic 13.184 613.184 

 

1.001 445 32 255. 

2022. 642.674 642.674 

 

1 nin.Sil0 331,3% 

2023 712.620 712.620 

 

2,144 218 33 25% 

   

LASERS 

    

Coutribunous iti 
Relation tu 

  

Coutributious 
at. 00 of 

 

Contractually Contracnially 

 

Exmployers Covered 

 

Retpiired Required Contninnion t'ovcred Employee 
Year Endnip lune 3u. Coniribution Contribution Defieteuc yi Execs..) Employee Pdyroll Payroll 

2015 IR.597 15.597 

 

44.812 40 - u% 
2016 17.410 17.419 

 

45.720 38.100 0 
2017 17.713 17.713 

 

46 614 40.1056 

2015 P.0.054 10.054 

 

47.516 40.10% 
2019 19.459 19.450 

 

48 526 40 1050 
202u 10,977 20.9"7 

 

51.541 40.700 0 

2021 21.039 21.040 

 

-19 50-1 42 5O5o 

2022 22.184 22.184 

 

50.92-1 43.565. 

2023 23.718 23.718 

 

52.9-41 44.805 0 

Th0 schedule ts to he hudel prospeente4 trunt Oil! 10-sear trend is compikd. the sein%hde thou 011bilThdlOu jhr those ,tears fiwniuch data is 
~lake, begraumg with FIE June j0. 2015 

For reference only: 

' £mplm.>r noun/moon rote multiplied by eutphwer't carer& eutplosve put roll 

Actual evils:ter contrthunons remitted to the repeenve pelmet; funds 

3  Employee% covered empiover pair* amount for theliscalyrqr ended 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA 
NONNLAJOR SPECIAL REVENt E Ft NDS 

COMBINING BALAN( E SHEE I  
JUNE 30, 2023  

ASSETS 

Street 
Maintenance 

Fund 

West 
Ouachita 

Senior Center 
Ftuid 

 

Ernereency 
Shelter 

Program 
Fund 

Officer 
Witness 
Court 
Fund 

S - $ 30.654 S 

 

S - Cash in Bank 
Accounts Receivable 
Due From Other Governments 

  

I-1958 

   

Due From Other Funds - 

   

6.8 9 ;4.616 

TOTAL ASSETS S - 4 45.612 

 

6,SS9 S 34_610 

LIABILITIES 

      

Accounts Payable S 

 

- 5 

 

1 

Due To Other Funds 

  

45.61? 

   

Total Liabilities 

  

45,612 

   

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

   

Deferred Revenue - CARES Act 

   

FUND BALANCES 

   

Restricted - 

 

6.889 34.616 

Assigned - 

   

Unassigned 

   

Total Fund Balances 

 

6,S89 34.616 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 

   

FUND BALANCES  45.612 6.459 S 34.616 



Miscellaneous 

Section 8 Projects & Metro LCLE Office of 

Housing Grant Capital Grant Motor 

Fund Funds Campaign Fund Vehicles  

$ 671,928 

12.143 

S 

13,619 395,188 

11_597 

2.614 

 

- C 

N 

T 

I 

N 

I.J 

F 

1) 

\ 684,071 S 13.619 395.188 ti 25.211 

   

493.556 

  

22.597 S - 
50.118 

 

493.556 

190.515 
13.619 395.1:it8 

2.614 

 

50,218 

- 

150.218) 

 

1 90.515 13.619 ;95.1S8 2.614 

 

(50.218) 

 

084.071 13.610 395185 S 25.211 S 

 



CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA 
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET  
JUNE 30, 2023  

Keep 
West Monroe Americorps Economic Total 

Beautiful Grant Ouachita Development Special Revenue 
Grant Prograrn Fund C)utreach District Funds 

ASSETS 

      

Cash in Bank 1) $ 

 

S - 1) 9'/,'07 S 1,624.789 
Accounts Receivkle 

   

- 

 

71.597 
Due From Other Governments 

  

58.271 

 

58.768 144.140 
Due From Other Funds 

  

4.687 :..349 

 

465.962 

TOTAL ASSETS 

  

62.955 S S.349 S 980.975 S '. 7 '-17  4 

LIABILITIES 

      

Accounts Payable 

    

210.840 233.437 
Due To Other Funds 

     

589.386 
Total Liabilities 

    

210.840 822.823 

FUND BALANCES 

      

Restricted 

  

62.958 - 770.135 1.067.727 
Assigned 

   

8,349 

 

417,156 
Unassigned 

     

(50.2lS) 
Total Fund Balances 

  

62.958 8.349 77().135 1.434.605 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 

      

FUND BALANCES  

  

6' 955 349 980 9-1 S 2 257 -48 



CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA  
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FItNI)ti  

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES ANI) 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

Revenues 

Sneet 
Maintenance 

Fund 

We.t 
Ouachita 

Senior Centel 
Fnnd 

Emergency 
Sheltei 

Program 
Fund 

Officet 
Witness 
Coint 
Fund 

Metro LCLE 
Grant 
Fund 

       

faxes $ 281.918 $ 

 

$ 

 

$ $ 
Iinergovemmental 

  

492,644 

 

15.321 

 

90.385 
Interest - 

    

- - 
Other - 

 

103,429 

  

19,595 - 
Total Revenues 281.918 

 

596.073 

 

15.321 19,595 90.385 

Expenditures 

       

Public Safety 

     

6,679 90.385 

Public Works 402.345 

      

Health and Welfare 

  

1,004,382 

 

3.652 

  

Culture and Recreation 

       

Capital Expenditure,. 

       

Majoi Repairs 
Total Expenditures 

       

-102.345 

 

1.004,3S2 

 

3.652 6,679 90.385 

Excess (Deficiency) of 

(120.427) 

 

(408,309) 

 

11.669 12,916 

 

Revenues Over Expenditures 

Other Einancino Sources 

120.427 

 

408.309 

    

Operinn? hansleis - In (Out) 

'total Other Financing 

Sources 

       

120.127 

 

408,309 

    

Net Chanue in Fund Balance 

    

11.669 12.916 

 

Fund Balances - Beginning 

    

(4.780) 21.700 2.614 

FUND BALANCES - ENDING  $ 

   

6.889 $ 34 616 S 2.614 



Americorps 
Cfrant 
hind 

Ounchii a 
Out enh 

Office of 
Motor 

Vehicles 

Section 8 
Housing 

Fund 

C' 

t) 

E 

213.293 

59.518 

53,522 1.938.791 
1,201 

334,263 

213,293 59.518 

51.169 

53_52' 

85.291 

',~74?Si 

2,289.007 

155.53i 51.169 S5,291 2.28Q1/07 

57,762 8.349 (31,769) (14,752) 

    

57,762 

5.196 

8.349 (31.769) 

(18,449) 

(14,752) 

205.267 

$ 62.958 S 8.349 $ (50.218) $ 190 515 



CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA  
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS  

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES [N FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

 

Capital 

Canipaiy,n 

Misc. 

Projects 

and Grant 

Funds 

Keep 

West Mkmiroe 

Beautifiil 

Grant Proy_rani 

Economic 

Development 

Disnict 

Total 

Nomnajoi 

Special Revernie 

Funds 

Taxes ti S ti 

 

S 1.725.289 $ 2,007.207 

Intel governmental 

   

, ()0 

 

2,804,456 

Inteiest 

 

- 

 

- 

 

1,201 

Othet 1SX.X06 6.000 

 

9.545 - 721.156 

Total Revenues 188,806 6.000 

 

10.045 1.725.289 5,534.020 

Ptah] ic Safety 

    

- 182,355 

Public Works 

    

- 402.345 

Health and Welfare 

    

- 3,297,041 

Cultute and Recteation 13.768 4.037 

 

16..•86 - 261,091 

(, apital Expendinires & 

Majoi Repairs 

    

1.'101.905 1.301.905 

Total Expenditures 13.708 4.037 

 

302, 80 1.q01.905 5.114.737 

Reveuues Over Expenditures 175.038 1,963 

 

(26.541) 423.384 89.283 

Operating Trawlers - In (Outl 

   

16.541 (978.011) (422,7341 

Total Other Financing 

Sources (Uses) 

         

16.541 (978.011) (422,734) 

 

175.038 1.963 

  

(554.627) (333,4511 

 

220.150 11,656 

  

1.324.762 1,768,116 

 

$ 395,188 $ 13.619 $ 

 

770.135 $ 1.434.665 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA  
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

WEST OUACHITA SENIOR CENTER  
BALANCE SHEETS  

Assets 

 

June 30. 
2023 2011 

  

Cash $ 30,654 $ 
Due Frorn Other Governments: 

   

City of Monroe 

Departrnent of Transportation 

 

14.958 39,074 

Total Assets y 45.611 $ 39,074 

I,iabilitic% and Fund Balance 

   

Liahilities 

   

Accounts Payable ti 

 

898 

Due To Other Funds 

 

45.611 38,176 
Total Liabilities 

 

45.611 39,074 

Fund Balance 

   

Unassigned 

   

Total Liabilitie and Fund Balance  $ 45.612 39.074 



CITY OF WEST NIONROE, LOUISIANA  
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND  

WEST OUACHITA SENIOR CENTER 
SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

Revenues 

For the Years Ended 
June 30. 

7013 

   

Department of Transportation S 367,958 $ 457,553 
Ouachita Council on Aging 

  

Senior Center Funds 100,159 74,814 
Supplemental Senior Center Funds 10,527 10,527 

Louisiana Office of Eklerly Affairs 

  

United Way 73.540 79,002 
Transportation Fees 14,000 11,040 
Miscellaneous Revenues (Ceramics. Greenhouse. etc.) 

 

39.451 
Total Revenues 596,073 6722,87 

Expendit ures 

  

Salaries and Related Expenditures 687,541 698,837 
Professional Services 69,289 59,540 
Repairs a.nd Maintenance 20,443 18,262 
Communications ?,£Sh 2,910 
Postage 224 240 
Newsletter 

  

Advertising 890 300 
Travel 6.977 9,828 
Supplies 73,846 68,777 

 

69,094 60,007 
Fuel 51,829 41,620 
Miscellaneous 21,363 18.150 

Total Expenditures 1,004,382 97K471 

Deficiency.  of Revenues Over Expenditures (408,309) (306,084) 

Other Financing Sources 
408,309 3(16.084 City of West Monroe Support 

Net ( hange in Fund Balance  

Fund Balance - Beginning 

FUND BALANCE - ENDING      

 77    



AY.IgfiCd 

Unac,igned 
Total Fund Balirkes 

5.27g 857.850 355 g84 94.019 1,313.031 
'24 t)001 (24.990) 

9-1(119 1.288 035 (24 0.0%) 857 S5u ..155.8S-1 

CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA 

NON NI AJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

JI 'NE 30, 2023  

Total 
2003 2U11 2uli nut 2022 Noununor 

Debt Service Debt Sernce Debt Serrke Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service 
Fluid Fund Fund Fitud Fuud Fund. 

ASSETS 

Cash in Bank S S 5.278 S 709.437 S 284.368 s s 990 08.1 
A:colt uts Receivable 
Due from Other Goverrunents 14S 413 71.516 108 668 328 597 
Due From Other Fund, - 

TOTAL ASSETS S S 5.2"14 S 85, .isv1 S S$5.F.84 $ I ug.6h8 S „327.6gu 

LIABILITIES 

Account, Payable 
Due To Other Fund, 24.99u 14.649 39.645 

Tohll 2_4 ma, 1-1 ti49 30  64c 

FUND BALANC:ES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 
FUND BALANCES s 5,2'8 S 857.550 S 355,8S-1 1r 108,668 S 1.327,680 

7'S 



MA' OF WEST NIONROE, LOITISIANA 

NONMAJOR DEBT SEIM( E FUNDS  

COMBINING SC HEDUEE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE R. 2023  

Total 

2003 20)1 2015 2n18 2022 Nomatar 
Debt Service Debi Service Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service 

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund,  

Rev swirl 
Taxes I S S 1 780,951 s S 1.780 054 
Rent Income 

Total Revenues 1.-80,954 1.- 1)...,54 

Expenditures  
Prins [pal Raiirment 
Odra Debt Service Costs 
Interest 

Total Expenditures  

2-4.096 1 1-45.000 42(1(100 130.00n 
4(X) 400 800 

669.156 441 - 87 703,19' 

1,760, not. 

tbon 
1.814 B5 

24,')06 S'02.1!:7 883.902 3 585.73 l 

Esce.... (Deficient%) of Re% enne%  

O%er Espenditui es (24.096) (33,402) '862 187) 1853.092) 11.8(44,777) 

Other Financing Sources 

Operating Dansfers - In 

Operat ing Ti an fers - Old    
S5i3.1 0 l 9".'31.0l l 1.S36.202 

O8.191 07);314i LS36.202 

: if.o2i (3 9064 94.019 O,425 

‘..11.452 359.8S0 I ,256.6 I i, 

s t,c- ..t511 S %.55.eS4 \ 94.n 19 $ I 2i;i44-4..5 

Net C hauge in Fund Balance 

I 'Intl Balance - Beginning, 

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 

(24,096) 

  

$ .24,006i s 



   

CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA 
NONNLUOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS 

COMBLNENG BALANCE SHEET 
JUNE 30, 2023  

    

    

Total 

2018 Debt 2011 Debt 2015 Debt Noninajor 

Capital Capital Capital C'Dfit.,- Capital Project 

Fund Ftuld Fund Project III Funds  

 ASSETS            

Cash in Bank 
Due From Other Governments 
Due From Other Funds    

$ 8 $ 5 $ 292.080 S 292.W3 

             

TOTAL ASSETS S 5 R $ $ 292.080 S 19, ,093 

LIABILITIES 

Accoimrs Payable S S $ - $ S - 

Due To Other Funds - ;0.00o 30.0O i 

Total LIabllitites 30,000 30.000 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) 

Restricted 8 5 262.080 262.093 
Unassigned 

Total Fund Balances 8 5 262O40 26' ,093 

TOTAL LIABILITIES ANI)  
FUND BALANCES (DEFI( ITS) $ $ 292.080 $ 292,093 

8U 



CITY OF WEST NIONROE, LOUISIANA  
NONMAJOR CAPITAL. PROJECT FUNDS  

COMBIMNG SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)  

FOR THE YEAR ENI)EI) JUNE 30, 2023  

Revenues 

2018 Deht 2011 Debt 

Capital Capital 
Ftuid Fund 

 

2015 Debt 

Capital CDBG- 

Fund Project III 

Total 

Nonmajor 

Capital Project 
Funds 

S 

 

$ $ 200:689 
155 

$ 200.689 
l 55 

intergovernmenial 
Other Income 

Total Revenues 

Ex enditures 

   

200.g4,1 200.844 

Capital Projects 

Excess (Deficiency) of 

200.84,1 200.844 Revenues Over Expenditures 

Other FinancinE Sourceslyses) 
Operating Transfers - In 

Operating Transfers - Out 
Total Other Financing Sources 
(Uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

      

8 

 

200144 

61,236 

2tIO.S44 

61.249 Fund Balances - Bezinning, 

FUND BALANCES - ENDING 

 

S S $ 262.080 $ 262.093 

81 



OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA  
ALL FUNDS 

SCHEDULE OF ASSESSED VALUATION AND AD VALOREM 
PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR 2022  

A ssessed Valuation $ 174.205,337 

Tax Rate Per Thousand Dollars (Mills) 8.53 

Ciross Tax Levy 1,485,977 

Tax Collected 
2022 Assessments $ 1,453,937 

2022 Tax 
Rate Mills 

Allocation of Tax Collected 

General Fund 6.90 $ 1,172,019 
Street Maintenance I .63 281,918 

Total s .5S  L.453,937 
    



CITY OF WEST NIONROE, LOUISIANA  
SC:HEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - CONVENTION C:ENTER 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

 

Events Concession Catering 1 otal 
Revenues 1,616 $ 10,117 $ 197,874 $ 209.712 

Cost of Operations 

    

Operating Expenditures 

  

63,862 63,862 
Personnel 

  

140.631 140,631 
Total 

  

204.493 204,493 

Gross Profit S 1,616 $ 10,117 $ (6,619) 5,219 

Administrative Expenditures 

    

Director's Salary 

    

Operations Salanes 

   

150,186 
Employee Benefits 

   

70,196 
Vehicle Maintenance 

   

4,205 
Materials. Repairs & Supplies 

    

Operating Supphes 

   

13,860 
Travel. Car & Meetings 

   

3,380 
Ce11 Phones and Pagers 

    

Fuel 

   

1,271 
Miscellanous 

   

492 
Office Supphes 

   

145 
Utihties 

   

33,965 
Total Administrative 

Expenditures 777,s17 

I)eticiency of Revenues Over 
Expenditures (272.603) 



Budget 

Varianee - 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 
194,900 14,812 

(i3,968 10(i 
141.727 1,096 
205,695 1O07 

(10,795) S 16,014 

149.908 1278) 
72.140 1,944 

5,200 995 

 

(22) 

14,000 140 
3,380 

 

1,650 379 

835 343 
300 55 

36,750 7,785 

284,163 6,341 

S (294,958) x 71,355 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA  
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - IKE HAMILTON EXPO CENTER 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

 

Equine 
Events Concession 

Stall Rentals & 
Shavings Total 

Revenue!, $ 471,763 $ 148,613 $ 404,114 $ 1,024.490 

Cost of Uperations 

    

Operatin:2 Expendiwres 194,447 61,254 166,563 4/2,164 
Personnel 252,764 79,625 216.518 548,907 

Total 447,211 140.N79 3N3.0N1 971,171 

Gross Profit 

 

7,734 21.033 53,319 

Administrative Expenditures 

    

Director's Salary 

    

Operations Salaries 

   

50,690 
Employee Benefits 

   

27 ,807 

Vehicle Maintenance 

   

21,648 
Materials. Repairs & Supplies 

   

6,361 
Fuel 

   

7,967 

Office 

   

818 
Cell Phones anti Pagers 

    

C)ther Miscellaneous Purchases 

   

9,467 

Operating Supplies 

   

28,060 

thihties 

   

450,360 
Total Administrative 

Expenditures 

   

603,178 

Deficiency of Revenues ON er 

   

(549,859) Expenditures 



Budget 

Variance - 
Fax orable 

(Unfavorable) 
988.825 35,665 

429,400 7,136 
534,614 (14.293) 
964,014 (7,157) 

24,811 S 28.508 

55,850 5,160 
29,354 1,547 
27,152 5,504 

 

(6.361) 
9,800 1,833 

780 (38) 

1,850 (7.617) 
28,000 (60) 

433,105 (17,255) 

585,£t91 (17.287) 

S (561,080) 11.221 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA  

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION PAID TO COUNCIL MEMBERS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED .IUNL 30, 2023  

James Brian ti 12,000 

Trevor Land 12,000 

Morgan Buxton 12,000 

Thom Hamilton 12,000 

Ben Westerburg 12,000 

60,(100 

S) 



REPORTS REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
AND UNIFORM GUIDANCE  



Mailing Address 
P. O. Box 2474 
INest 1‘,1onroe, LA 71294-2474 

CAMERON, HENTES & COMPANY 
(A Professional Accounting Corporation) 

Certified Public Accountants 
104 Regency Place 

West Monroe, Louisiana 71291 
Phone (318)., 323-1717 

Fax 1318 322-5121 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT A UDITING STANDARDS 

Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen of 
West Monroe, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of West Monroe, Louisiana (the City) as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated 
December 8, 2023. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those 
charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 
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Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen of 
West Monroe, Louisiana 

Page 2 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not 
an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed one instance of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs as item 2023-001. 

City of West Monroe, Louisiana's Response to Findings 

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the City's 
response to the finding identified in our audit and described in the accompanying schedule of findings 
and questioned costs. The City's response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the financial statements, and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 

Purpose of the Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

West Monroe, Louisiana -a-es,-Gtertm 1 -444.10,  0-o-x‘fr-4-uy, 
December 8, 2023 
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Wing Address:  
P. O. Box 2474 
West Monroe, LA 71294-2474 

CAMERON, liaTES & COMPANY 
(A Professional Accounting Corporation) 

Certified Public Accountants 
104 Regency Place 

West 'Monroe, Louisiana 71291 
Phone (318) 323-1717 

Fax (31tP, 322-5121 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY 

THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen of 
West Monroe, Louisiana 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the City of West Monroe, Louisiana's (the City) compliance with the types of compliance 
identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect 
on each of the City's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2023. The City's major federal 
programs are identified in the Summary of Auditors' Results section of the accompanying Schedule of 
Findings and Questioned Costs. 

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 
30, 2023. 

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the 
Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 
sections of our report. 

We are required to be independent of the City and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance 
with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City's compliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above. 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of 
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the City's 
federal programs. 
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Honorahle Mayor and Board of Aldermen of 
West Monroe, Louisiana 

Page 2 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the .4udit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonahle assurance about whether material noncornpliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to AKA e occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion 
on the City's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not 
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally 
accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect 
material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from 
fraud is higher than for that resulting froin error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contml. Noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or 
in the aggxegate, it would influence the judgement made hy a reasonable user of the report on compliance 
about the City's compliance with the requirements of each major federal prograrn as a whole 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing 
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we. 

• Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design 

and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test 
basis, evidence regarding the City's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above 
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

• Obtain an understanding of the City's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal 
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly. no such opinion is expressed 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deticiencies and rnaterial weaknesses in internal 
control over compliance that we identified during the audit 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

A deticiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies. in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility 
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected. on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control o‘er 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a federal prograrn that is less se‘ ere than a material weakness in internal 
control over compliance, yet irnportant enough to merit attention by those charged with govemance. 
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Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen of 
West Monroe, Louisiana 

Page 3 

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined 
above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may 
exist that were not identified.. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control 
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

West Monroe, Louisiana 
0.4....„„, 4-4..vi, i 0-O,.,-,..". 61144-c) 

December 8, 2023 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA  
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS 

1 The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on the basic government financial 
statements of the City of West Monroe, Louisiana 

One significant deficiency was disclosed during the audit of the financial statements as reported 
in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance and on Internal Control over Financial 
Reporting Based on an Audit Of Financial Statements Performed In Accordance With 
Govelnnient Auditing Standards and the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each 
Major Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance 

3. No instances of noncompliance matenal to the financial statements of the City of West Monroe, 
Louisiana, which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards, were disclosed during the audit. 

4. No sipificant deficiencies were disclosed during the audit of the major federal award programs in 
the Report On Compliance With Requirements That Could Have A Direct and Material Effect on 
Each Major Program And On Internal Control Over Compliance In Accordance With Title 2 U. S. 
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and 
Audit Uniform Guidelines Requirements for Federal Awards. 

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the C'ity of West 
Monroe. Louisiana expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs. 

6. There were no audit findings relative to the major federal award programs for the City of West 
Monroe, Louisiana. 

7. The program tested as major programs included the Department of the Treasury COVID-19 
Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds. AL No. 21 027. 

8. The threshold for distinguishing between Types A and B programs was 8750.000. 

9. The City of West Monroe, Louisiana does qualify to be a low-risk auditee 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA  
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2(123 (continued)  

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT 
Section III — Findings or questioned costs for Federal awards, including those specified by 
Uniform Guidance: 

No findings were noted. 

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 

2023-001 Theft of Assets 

Condition:  
During January of 2023, it was discovered that a vendor disbursement check in 
the amount of $49,571.56 for the purchase of equipment was. intercepted after 
being mailed and altered by a person affiliated with neither the vendor nor the 
City. The vendor inquired ahout payment after approximately a month and a 
half and. upon review of the City's bank statement. it was realized that the check 
had already cleared the bank. Further investigation by the City's police 
department and federal law enforcement determined what occurred. The City 
received f'ull reimbursement in July of 2023 from the bank that cashed the 
fraudulent check. 

Manaeement of the City also notified the Louisiana Legislative Auditor as well 
as the District Attorney. 

Criteria:  
The Louisiana Legislative Auditor requires the reporting of any instance of fraud 
or misappropriation that exceeds $1,000 

Cause.  
An unintended recipient was able to obtain one of the City's checks that was 
written to a vendor, copy and alter the check, and cash it with their name in place 
of the vendor. 

Effect:  
The City could have lost public hinds in the amount of $49,571.56. 

Recommendation:  
Inquire of bank officials if there are additional securitN,  measures that can be 
implemented to safeguard checks once they have been disbursed. 

Manaeement's Response:  
The City has implemented a new pay confirniation process with the bank to try 
and mitigate the risk of this occurring in the future 

9") 



CITY OF WEST MONROE LOUISIANA  
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDEI) JUNE 30, 2023 

Fedei al GI auk:Pass I lirough Gi autoi iProgram Title "N umbel 
Argenc oi Pass 

1 bi ough Number Expendllute% 

Department of Housing & Urbau Iteveloptoeat 
Housing Vouchei Cluster. 

    

Secuou 8 Housmg Choice Voucheis 14 871 LA 186 5 2.2:(7.724 
Total Housing Voucher ('lustei 

   

2.287.724 

Department or Justice 

    

Bulletproof Vest Parmership Progtam 16 607 

  

9.456 

Pubhc Safety Parmership & Community Policing Grants 16 71(1 2021UMW70372 

 

2.691 

Edwatd Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Giant Progmni 16 738 2019-D1-01-6173 

 

91O85 

Department of Transportation & Development 

    

Thiough Louisiana Deparunent of Transportation and Development 

Highway Planning & Construction 20 205 

   

1.Natchitoches Sr Rehab: Trenton - N 7di 20 205 H.013400 

 

450.466 
2. Otis Street Rehabilitation 20 205 H.013518 

 

699.112 

    

1.149.578 
FHWA RetTeanollal TOILS Piogram 20 219 

   

I. Riverbend Elementary Sidewalks 20 219 H.007532+1.007532.6 

 

29.887 

Fonnula Grants for Rural Areas (5311) 20 509 

  

367.95b 

Through Louisiana Highway Safely Commisslon 

    

Highway Safetv Cluster 
Srate and Commtmity Highway Safety 20 600 

  

128.030 
Total HigInvay Salety Cluster 

   

128.030 

Executive Office of the President 

Delta Regional .Ainhonly 90 200 

   

1.Highland Park Improvenients, Phase 1 90 200 LA-54267 

 

413.004 
2. Cypress:Slack Sanitary Sewer Impiovemems 90 200 LA-54509 

 

228.636 

    

64 Li;40 

Department of Commerce 

    

Economic Development Clustei: 

    

Economic Adjustment .Asswance 11 307 

   

1. Downing Pines Industrial Park Drainage Impiovements 11 307 08-79-05168 

 

458.043 
Total Economic Developmem Cluster 

   

-158.043 

Corporation for National and Community Service 

    

Thiough Volunteer Louisiana Commission in the Office of the Lieutenant Governor 

Amer iCorps State and Narional 94 006 ISAFHLA0010004 

 

155.031 

Department of Homeland Security 

    

Einergency Fuod and Shelter National Board Program 97 024 

  

3.651 

Hazard Mitigation Giant Program 97 039 

  

231.925 

    

(continued) 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL ANN. ARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

Federal Grants%Pass Ihrough GrautorProgram Iitie 
AL 

Number 

Ageory or Pass 

Through Number 
Expenditures

 

Department of the Ti easury 

   

IMVID-19 Corm-Lava-us State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 21 027 2.262.934 

Through the Ouachita Par ish Puhce Jury 

COVID-19 Coronanrus State and Local Fiscal Recover) Funds 21 027 638.22o 

   

2.901.154 * 

Total Fedeial Expeuditui es 

  

S 8.457.153 

Imhcated Major Federal Program 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LUI1ISI.ANA  
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES 

OF FEDERAL AWARDS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

1. General 

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all federal award programs 
of the City of West Monroe, Louisiana. The City of West Monroe, Louisiana reporting entity is 
defined in Note 1 to the City's financial statements. All federal award avograms received directly 
from federal agencies, as well as federal awards passed through other government agencies. are 
included on the schedule 

1 . Basis of Accounting 

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the accrual basis of accounting, 
which is described in Note 1 to the City's financial statements. The information in this schedule is 
presented in accordance with the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Therefore, some amounts 
presented in this schedule may differ frotn amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the 
basic financial statements. 

3. Federal Indirect Cost Rate 

The City of West Monroe, Louisiana did not elect to use the 10% de minimis federal indirect cost rate 
for the year ended June 30. 2023. 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOI1ISI.ANA  
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

Section I- Internal Control and Compliance Material to the Financial Statements — N A 

Section II- Internal Control and C'ompliance Material to Federal Awards  

2022-0111 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers - Compliance First reported in 2021 

Federal Program 
14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 

Criteria or Specific Requirement 
Compliance with Housing and Urban Developrnent (HUD) Requirernents on the Utility Allowance 
Schedule 
If the cost of utihties is not included in the rent to the owner, HUD requirement 24 CFR section 982.517 
requires the City to use a schedule of utility allowances to determine the amount an assisted family needs 
to receive to cover the cost of utilities. This utility allowance schedule is developed based on utility 
consumption and rate data for various unit sizes, structure types. and fuel types. The City is required to 
review its utility allowance schedules annually and to adjust them if there has been an increase of more 
than 10°"; from the current schedule. 

Condition Found 
We inquired of management and noted the utility allowance schedules had not been reviewed in the 2020-

 

21 fiscal year. 

Recommendations to Prevent Future Occurrences 
The City should take steps to make sure there are employees to help review the utility allowance 
schedule Another option would be to use an outside company to review the utility allowance schedule. 

(:urrent Status 
This finding has been cleared. 

21122-0112 Section 8 Housing C:hoice Vouchers — Internal Control over Compliance 
First reported in 2021 

Federal Program 
14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 

(:riteria or Specific Requirement 
Compliance with Housing and Urban Developrnent (HUD) Requirements on the Utility Allowance 
Schedule 
If the cost of utilities is not included in the rent to the owner, HUD requirement 24 CFR section 982.517 
requires the City to use a schedule of utility allowances to determine the amount an assisted family needs 
to receive to cover the cost of utilities. This utility allowance schedule is developed hased on utihty 
consumption and rate data for various unit sizes, structure types. and fuel types. The City is required to 
review its utility allowance schedules annuallv and to adjust them if there has been an increase of more 
than 10% from the current schedule 



CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOI1ISI.ANA  
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 (continued)  

Condition Found 
We inquired of management and noted the internal controls of the City did not operate properly and did 
not allow the City to update the utility allowance for the Section 8 program. 

Recommendations to Prevent Future Occurrences 
The C'ity should improve its internal controls to make sure there are employees to help review the utility 
allowance schedule. Another option would be to use an outside company to review the utility allowance 
schedule. 

Current Status 
This finding has been cleared. 

21122-0113 Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher.; — Compliance First reported in 2022 

Federal Program 
14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 

Criteria or Specific Requirement 
Comphance with Housing and Urban nevCloi?lllerit (HUD) Requirements on Depository Agreements 
HUD Requirement 24 CFR section 982.156 requires the City to enter into depository agreements with 
their financial institutions in a form required by HUD. The agreement sell es as a safeguard for federal 
funds and provides third party rights to HUD. 

Condition Found 
We noted that the City did not have a depository ageement with its current financial institution that it 
uses for the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher program. 

Recommendations to Prevent Future Occurrences 
The City should work with their current financial institution to complete a depository agreement to have 
on tile 

(:urrent Status 
This finding has been cleared. 

Section 111- Mana2ement Letter 

No management letter was issued. 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA  

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS 

AND OTHER PAYMENTS TO AGENCY HEAD 

JUNE 30 2023 

Agency Head 
Mayor Staci Albritton Mitchell 

Salary 

Benefits 

 

$ 98,500 

 

Pension - Municipal 19.O8 

  

Medical Insurance 1.429 

  

Life and Disability Insurance 484 

  

Gym Memhership 240 

  

Car Allowance 10.800 

  

Total Benefits 

 

42,011 

Total 

  

$ 140,511 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA  
Justice System Funding Schedule - Collecting/Disbursing Entity 
As Required by Act 87 of the 2021) Regular Legislative Session 

For the Year Ended June 311, 2(123  

First Six Second Six 
Month Period Month Period 

Ended Ended 
Cash Basis Presentation 

Beginning ltalance of Amounts Collected (i.e. cash On hand) 

Add: Collections 

 

1131!2022 6,30.2023 

$ $ 

Bond Fees 

 

2.260 2.£+42 
Criminal Court Costs:Tees 

 

130.298 120.347 
Criminal Fines - Other 

 

122.378 1?i.83£+ 
Subtotal Collections 

 

1 54.886 '19 027 

Less: Disbursemenis tu Guvernments & Nonprofits 

   

West Monioe City Marshal Criminal Coint Costs:Fees 20.058 17.-144 
West Monioe City Comt Cnniinal Court Costs:Fees 58() 321) 
Fourth Judicial District Public Defender Board Criminal Court Costs:Fees 32.650 30.552 
Ninth Louisiana Criminalistic Lab Cruuinal Court Costs:Fees 33.434 33.271) 
Drug Crime Lab Educatiou Fund Criminal Court Costs:Fees 1.750 1.876 
Cruue Victim Fund Cruuinal Court CostsTees 1.930 1.785 
Louisiana Conffilissloll OD Law Enforcement Criminal Court Costs:Fees 1.226 1,329 
Public Safety Training Fund Criminal Court Costs:Fees 1.725 1.375 
Trial Court Case Management Fund Criminal Com Costs:Fees 1.877 2.037 
Injury Trust Fund Criminal Court Costs•Tees 1.027 1,080 
Crime Stoppers Criminal Court Costs•Tees 1.252 1.358 
Louisiana Supreme Court Crmiinal Court Costs•Tees 312 337 

Less: Amounts Retained by Collecting Agency 

   

Bond Fees 

 

2,260 2,842 
Ciiminal Court Costs/Fees 

 

14.351 14,479 
Ciiminal Fines - Other 

 

1411.454 138,943 
Subtotal Disbursetnents/Retainage 

 

254.S86 249,027 

Total: Ending Balance of Amounts Collected 
but not DisbursedfRetained (i.e. cash on hand)          
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA 

Independent Accountants ' Report on 
Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

CAMERON, HINES & COMPANY, (A Professional Accounting Corporation) West Monroe, Louisiana 
Certified Public Accountants 



MAling Address; 
P. O. Box 2474 
West Monroe, LA 71294-2474 

CAMERON, HINES & COMPANY* 
(A Professional Amounting Corporation) 

Certified Public Accountants 
104 Regency Place 

West Monroe, Louisiana 71291 
Phone (318: 323-1717 

Fax (318; 322-5121 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To the Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the City of West Monroe, Louisiana (the City) 
and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor: 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on the control and compliance (C/C) areas identified 
in the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's (LLA's) Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for the fiscal 
period July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2023. The City's management is responsible for those C/C areas 
identified in the SAUPs. 

The City has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate to meet the 
intended purpose of the engagement, which is to perform specified procedures on the C/C areas identified 
in LLA's SAUPs for the fiscal period July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2023. Additionally, LLA has agreed 
to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate for its purposes. This report may not 
be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures performed may not address all the items of interest to a 
user of this report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report and, as such, users are responsible 
for determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes. 

The procedures and associated findings are as follows: 

1) Written Policies and Procedures 

A. Obtain and inspect the entity's written policies and procedures and observe whether they address 
each of the following categories and subcategories if applicable to public funds and the entity's 
operations: 

i. Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 

ii. Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated, (2) how vendors are added to the 
vendor list, (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase 
orders, (4) controls to ensure compliance with the Public Bid Law, and (5) documentation 
required to be maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

111. Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving. 

iv. Receipts/Collections, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, 
policies and procedures should include management's actions to determine the 
completeness of all collections for each type of revenue or agency fund additions (e.g., 

For governmental organizations, the practitioner may eliminate those categories and subcategories not applicable to the 
organization's operations. For quasi-public organizations, including nonprofits, the practitioner may eliminate those categories 
and subcategories not applicable to public funds administered by the quasi-public. 
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periodic confirmation with outside parties, reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff 
procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number sequences, agency fund forfeiture 
monies confirmation). 

v. Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, (2) reviewing and approving time and 
attendance records, including leave and overtime worked, and (3) approval process for 
employee rates of pay or approval and maintenance of pay rate schedules. 

vi. Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terms 
and conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. 

vii. Travel and Expense Reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar 
thresholds by category of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required 
approvers. 

viii. Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, purchase cards, if applicable), including (1) 
how cards are to be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation 
requirements, (4) required approvers of statements, and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g., 
determining the reasonableness of fuel card purchases). 

ix. Ethics', including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 
42:1111-1121, (2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to 
monitor possible ethics violations, and (4) a requirement that documentation is maintained 
to demonstrate that all employees and officials were notified of any changes to the entity's 
ethics policy. 

x. Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA 
reporting requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements. 

xi. Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity, including (1) 
identification of critical data and frequency of data backups, (2) storage of backups in a 
separate physical location isolated from the network, (3) periodic testing/verification that 
backups can be restored, (4) use of antivirus software on all systems, (5) timely application 
of all available system and software patches/updates, and (6) identification of personnel, 
processes, and tools needed to recover operations after a critical event. 

xii. Prevention of Sexual Harassment, including R.S. 42:342-344 requirements for (1) agency 
responsibilities and prohibitions, (2) annual employee training, and (3) annual reporting. 

Findings: Eight exceptions noted where the required topics were not addressed in the City's policies and 
procedures. 

2) Board or Finance Committee3 

A. Obtain and inspect the board/finance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the board's 
enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the fiscal period, and 

2  The Louisiana Code of Governmental Ethics (Ethics Code) is generally not applicable to nonprofit entities but may be 
applicable in certain situations, such as councils on aging. If the Ethics Code is applicable to a nonprofit, the nonprofit should 
have written policies and procedures relating to ethics. 

These procedures are not applicable to entities managed by a single elected official, such as a sheriff or assessor. 
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i. Observe that the board/finance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a 
frequency in accordance with the board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or other 
equivalent document. 

ii. For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe whether the 
minutes referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the general fund, 
quarterly budget-to-actual, at a minimum, on proprietary funds4, and semi-annual budget-
to-actual, at a minimum, on all special revenue funds. Alternatively, for those entities 
reporting on the not-for-profit accounting model, observe that the minutes referenced or 
included financial activity relating to public Ands' if those public funds comprised more 
than 10% of the entity's collections during the fiscal period. 

iii. For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unassigned 
fund balance in the general fund. If the general fund had a negative ending unassigned 
fund balance in the prior year audit report, observe that the minutes for at least one meeting 
during the fiscal period referenced or included a formal plan to eliminate the negative 
unassigned fund balance in the general fund. 

iv. Observe whether the board/finance committee received written updates of the progress of 
resolving audit finding(s), according to management's corrective action plan at each 
meeting until the findings are considered fully resolved.6 

Findings: No exceptions noted. 

3) Bank Reconciliations 

A. Obtain a listing of entity bank accounts for the fiscal period from management and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Ask management to identify the entity's main operating 
account. Select the entity's main operating account and randomly select 4 additional accounts' (or 
all accounts if less than 5). Randomly select one month from the fiscal period, obtain and inspect 
the corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for each selected account, and observe that: 

i. Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the 
related statement closing date (e.g., initialed and dated or electronically logged); 

ii. Bank reconciliations include written evidence that a member of management or a board 
member who does not handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank 
reconciliation (e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); and 

111.	 Management has documentation reflecting it has researched reconciling items that have 
been outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if applicable. 

4Proprietaty fiind types are defined under GASB standards and include enterprise and internal service funds. The related 
procedure addresses these funds as a way to verify that boards are provided with financial information necessary to make 
informed decisions about entity operations, including proprietaty operations that are not required to be budgeted under the Local 
Government Budget Act. 

R.S. 24:513 (A)(1)(b)(iv) defines public funds. 
6  No exception is necessaiy if management's opinion is that the cost of taking colTective action for findings related to improper 
segregation of duties or inadequate design of controls over the preparation of the financial statements being audited exceeds the 
benefits of correcting those findings. 
7  Accounts selected may exclude savings and investment accounts that are not part of the entity's daily business operations. 
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Findings: Three exceptions noted where the reconciliation was not reviewed by a member of management 
or board member who did not handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks. Three exceptions noted where 
management did not have documentation reflecting it had researched reconciling items that had been 
outstanding for more than twelve months from the closing date. 

4) Collections (excluding electronic funds transfers)8 

A. Obtain a listing of deposit sites9  for the fiscal period where deposits for cash/checks/money orders 
(cash) are prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 
5 deposit sites (or all deposit sites if less than 5). 

B. For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locations10  and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each deposit 
site (e.g., 5 collection locations for 5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect written policies and 
procedures relating to employee job duties (if there are no written policies or procedures, then 
inquire of employees about their job duties) at each collection location, and observe that job duties 
are properly segregated at each collection location such that 

i. Employees responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers; 

11. Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not also responsible for preparing/making 
bank deposits, unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling collection 
documentation (e.g., pre-numbered receipts) to the deposit; 

iii. Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not also responsible for posting collection 
entries to the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee/official is 
responsible for reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit; and 

iv. The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or 
subsidiary ledgers, by revenue source and/or agency fund additions, is (are) not also 
responsible for collecting cash, unless another employee/official verifies the reconciliation. 

C. Obtain from management a copy of the bond or insurance policy for theft covering all employees 
who have access to cash. Observe that the bond or insurance policy for theft was in force during 
the fiscal period. 

D. Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for Bank 
Reconciliations procedure #3A (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits were 
made on the dates randomly selected and randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits are made 
on the same day). Alternatively, the practitioner may use a source document other than bank 
statements when selecting the deposit dates for testing, such as a cash collection log, daily revenue 
report, receipt book, etc. Obtain supporting documentation for each of the 10 deposits and: 

i. Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 11 

The Collections category is not required to be peiformed if the entity has a third-party contractor performing all collection 
functions (e.g., receiving collections, preparing deposits, and making deposits). 
9  A deposit site is a physical location where a deposit is prepared and reconciled. 
10  A collection location is a physical location where cash is collected. An entity may have one or more collection locations 
whose collections are brought to a deposit site for deposit. For example, in a school district a collection location may be a 
classroom and a deposit site may be the school office. For school boards only, the practitioner should consider the deposit site 
and collection location to be the same if there is a central person (secretary or bookkeeper) through which collections are 
deposited. 
11  The practitioner is not required to test for completeness of revenues relative to classroom collections by teachers. 
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ii. Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection 
documentation to the deposit slip. 

iii. Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

iv. Observe that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt12  at the collection 
location (within one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection 
location or the deposit is less than $100 and the cash is stored securely in a locked safe or 
drawer). 

v. Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

Findings: One exception noted where the deposit was not made within one business day or receipt. 

5) Non-Payroll Disbursements (excluding card purchases, travel reimbursements, and petty cash 
purchases) 

A. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less than 
5). 

B. For each location selected under procedure #5A above, obtain a listing of those employees involved 
with non-payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures 
relating to employee job duties (if the agency has no written policies and procedures, then inquire 
of employees about their job duties), and observe that job duties are properly segregated such that 

i. At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, 
and placing an order or making the purchase; 

11. At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors; 

iii. The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from adding/modifying 
vendor files, unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to 
vendor files; 

iv. Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the 
signed checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments; and 

v. Only employees/officials authorized to sign checks approve the electronic disbursement 
(release) of funds, whether through automated clearinghouse (ACH), electronic funds 
transfer (EFT), wire transfer, or some other electronic means. 

[Note: Findings related to controls that constrain the legal authority of certain public officials (e.g., 
mayor of a Lawrason Act municipality) should not be reported.] 

C. For each location selected under procedure #5A above, obtain the entity's non-payroll disbursement 
transaction population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain management's 
representation that the population is complete. Randomly select 5 disbursements for each location, 
obtain supporting documentation for each transaction, and 

12  As required by Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1212. 
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i. Observe whether the disbursement, whether by paper or electronic means, matched the 
related original itemized invoice and supporting documentation indicates that deliverables 
included on the invoice were received by the entity, and 

ii. Observe whether the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initial/date, 
electronic logging) of segregation of duties tested under procedure #5B above, as 
applicable. 

D. Using the entity's main operating account and the month selected in Bank Reconciliations 
procedure #3A, randomly select 5 non-payroll-related electronic disbursements (or all electronic 
disbursements if less than 5) and observe that each electronic disbursement was (a) approved by 
only those persons authorized to disburse funds (e.g., sign checks) per the entity's policy, and (b) 
approved by the required number of authorized signers per the entity's policy. Note: If no electronic 
payments were made from the main operating account during the month selected the practitioner 
should select an alternative month and/or account for testing that does include electronic 
disbursements. 

Findings: No exceptions noted. 

6) Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/Purchase Cards (Cards) 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and 
purchase cards (cards) for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names of the 
persons who maintained possession of the cards13. Obtain management's representation that the 
listing is complete. 

B. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 5) that 
were used during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or combined statement 
for each card (for a debit card, randomly select one monthly bank statement). Obtain supporting 
documentation, and 

i. Observe whether there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and 
supporting documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit card purchases, exception 
reports for excessive fuel card usage) were reviewed and approved, in writing (or 
electronically approved) by someone other than the authorized card holder (those instances 
requiring such approval that may constrain the legal authority of certain public officials, 
such as the mayor of a Lawrason Act municipality, should not be reported); and 

11. Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 

C. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under procedure #7B above, 
excluding fuel cards, randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each 
statement, and obtain supporting documentation for the transactions (e.g., each card should have 
10 transactions subject to inspection)14. For each transaction, observe that it is supported by (1) an 
original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased, (2) written documentation 
of the business/public purpose, and (3) documentation of the individuals participating in meals (for 

13  Including cards used by school staff for either school operations or student activity fund operations. 
14  For example, if 3 of the 5 cards selected were fuel cards, transactions would only be selected for each of the 2 credit cards. 
Conceivably, if all 5 cards randomly selected under procedure #7B were fuel cards, procedure #7C would not be applicable. 
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meal charges only). For missing receipts, the practitioner should describe the nature of the 
transaction and observe whether management had a compensating control to address missing 
receipts, such as a "missing receipt statement" that is subject to increased scrutiny. 

Findings: Two exceptions noted where the transaction was not supported by an original itemized receipt 
identifying what was purchased. 

7) Travel and Travel-Related Expense Reimbursements15  (excluding card transactions) 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements during 
the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger is complete. 
Randomly select 5 reimbursements and obtain the related expense reimbursement forms/prepaid 
expense documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the supporting documentation. 
For each of the 5 reimbursements selected 

i. If reimbursed using a per diem, observe that the approved reimbursement rate is no more 
than those rates established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services 
Administration (www.gsa.gov); 

11. If reimbursed using actual costs, observe that the reimbursement is supported by an original 
itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased; 

iii. Observe that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public 
purpose (for meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those 
individuals participating) and other documentation required by Written Policies and 
Procedures procedure #1A(vii); and 

iv. Observe that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other 
than the person receiving reimbursement. 

Findings: No exceptions noted. 

8) Contracts 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional services, materials 
and supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during the fiscal 
period. Alternatively, the practitioner may use an equivalent selection source, such as an active 
vendor list. Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 
contracts (or all contracts if less than 5) from the listing, excluding the practitioner's contract, and 

i. Observe whether the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law16 
(e.g., solicited quotes or bids, advertised), if required by law; 

ii. Observe whether the contract was approved by the governing body/board, if required by 
policy or law (e.g., Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter); 

15  Non-travel reimbursements are not required to be inspected under this categoiy. 
16  If the entity has adopted the state Procurement Code, replace "Louisiana Public Bid Law" with "Louisiana Procurement Code." 
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iii. If the contract was amended (e.g., change order), observe that the original contract terms 
provided for such an amendment and that amendments were made in compliance with the 
contract terms (e.g., if approval is required for any amendment, the documented approval); 
and 

iv. Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain the 
supporting invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms, and observe that the invoice 
and related payment agreed to the terms and conditions of the contract. 

Findings: No exceptions noted. 

9) Payroll and Personnel 

A. Obtain a listing of employees and officials" employed during the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees or officials, obtain related 
paid salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates in the 
personnel files. 

B. Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 employees or officials selected 
under procedure #9A above, obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay period, 
and 

i. Observe that all selected employees or officials18  documented their daily attendance and 
leave (e.g., vacation, sick, compensatory); 

ii. Observe whether supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees 
or officials; 

111. Observe that any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the entity's 
cumulative leave records; and 

iv. Observe the rate paid to the employees or officials agrees to the authorized salary/pay rate 
found within the personnel file. 

C. Obtain a listing of those employees or officials that received termination payments during the fiscal 
period and management's representation that the list is complete. Randomly select two employees 
or officials and obtain related documentation of the hours and pay rates used in management's 
termination payment calculations and the entity's policy on termination payments. Agree the hours 
to the employee's or official's cumulative leave records, agree the pay rates to the employee's or 
official's authorized pay rates in the employee's or official's personnel files, and agree the 
termination payment to entity policy. 

D. Obtain management's representation that employer and employee portions of third-party payroll 
related amounts (e.g., payroll taxes, retirement contributions, health insurance premiums, 
garnishments, workers' compensation premiums, etc.) have been paid, and any associated forms 
have been filed, by required deadlines. 

17  "Officials" would include those elected, as well as board members who are appointed. 
18  Generally, officials are not eligible to eam leave and do not document their attendance and leave. However, if the official is 
earning leave according to a policy and/or contract, the official should docuinent his/her daily attendance and leave. 
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Findings: No exceptions noted. 

10) Ethics19 

A. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure #9A 
obtain ethics documentation from management, and 

i. Observe whether the documentation demonstrates that each employee/official completed 
one hour of ethics training during the calendar year as required by R.S. 42:1170; and 

ii. Observe whether the entity maintains documentation which demonstrates that each 
employee and official were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy during the 
fiscal period, as applicable. 

B. Inquire and/or observe whether the agency has appointed an ethics designee as required by R.S. 
42:1170. 

Findings: No exceptions noted. 

11) Debt Service20 

A. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes and other debt instruments issued during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all debt instruments on the listing, 
obtain supporting documentation, and observe that State Bond Commission approval was obtained 
for each debt instrument issued as required by Article VII, Section 8 of the Louisiana Constitution. 

B. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one bond/note, inspect debt covenants, 
obtain supporting documentation for the reserve balance and payments, and agree actual reserve 
balances and payments to those required by debt covenants (including contingency funds, short-
lived asset funds, or other funds required by the debt covenants). 

Findings: No exceptions noted. 

12) Fraud Notice21 

A. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on the 
listing, obtain supporting documentation, and observe that the entity reported the 

19  The Louisiana Code of Governmental Ethics (Ethics Code) is generally not applicable to nonprofit entities but may be 
applicable in certain situations, such as councils on aging. If the Ethics Code is applicable to a nonprofit, the procedures should 
be performed. 
20  This AUP categoiy is generally not applicable to nonprofit entities. However, if applicable, the procedures should be 
performed. 
21  Observation may be limited to those premises that are visited during the perfoimance of other procedures under the AUPs and 
the notice is available for download at www.11a.la.gov/hotline 
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misappropriation(s) to the legislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which the 
entity is domiciled as required by R.S. 24:523. 

B. Observe that the entity has posted, on its premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 24:523.1 
concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of public funds. 

Findings: No exceptions noted. 

13) Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity 

A. Perform the following procedures, verbally discuss the results with management, and report 
"We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management." 

i. Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has backed up its critical 
data (if there is no written documentation, then inquire of personnel responsible for backing 
up critical data) and observe evidence that such backup (a) occurred within the past week, 
(b) was not stored on the government's local server or network, and (c) was encrypted. 

11. Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has tested/verified that its 
backups can be restored (if there is no written documentation, then inquire of personnel 
responsible for testing/verifying backup restoration) and observe evidence that the 
test/verification was successfully performed within the past 3 months. 

iii. Obtain a listing of the entity's computers currently in use and their related locations, and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 computers 
and observe while management demonstrates that the selected computers have current and 
active antivirus software and that the operating system and accounting system software in 
use are currently supported by the vendor. 

B. Randomly select 5 terminated employees (or all terminated employees if less than 5) using the list 
of terminated employees obtained in procedure #9C. Observe evidence that the selected terminated 
employees have been removed or disabled from the network. 

Findings: We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management. 

14) Prevention of Sexual Harassment' 

A. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure #9A, 
obtain sexual harassment training documentation frorn management, and observe that the 
documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed at least one hour of sexual 
harassment training during the calendar year as required by R.S. 42:343. 

22  While it appears to be a good practice for charter schools to ensure it has policies and training for sexual harassment, charter 
schools do not appear required to comply with the Prevention of Sexual Harassment Law (R.S. 42:341 et seq). An individual 
charter school, through the specific provisions of its charter, may mandate sexual harassment training. 
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B. Observe that the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on its 
website (or in a conspicuous location on the entity's premises if the entity does not have a website). 

C. Obtain the entity's annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, observe that the 
report was dated on or before February 1, and observe that the report includes the applicable 
requirements of R.S. 42:344: 

i. Number and percentage of public servants in the agency who have completed the training 
requirements; 

ii. Number of sexual harassment complaints received by the agency; 

iii. Number of complaints which resulted in a finding that sexual harassment occurred; 

iv. Number of complaints in which the finding of sexual harassment resulted in discipline or 
corrective action; and 

v. Amount of time it took to resolve each complaint. 

Findings: No exceptions noted. 

Management's Response 

We concur with the results of the procedures and are working diligently to improve controls. 

We were engaged by the City to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and conducted our 
engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants and applicable standards of Government Auditing Standards. We were not engaged to 
and did not conduct an examination or review engagement, the objective of which would be the expression 
of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might 
have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. 

We are required to be independent of the City and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance 
with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures engagement. 

This report is intended solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas identified in the 
SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance. Accordingly, 
this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is 
distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

West Monroe, Louisiana 
0o—Nycr—.1.7, O1-144-C) 

December 11, 2023 
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